
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
November 1, 2012, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the October 4, 2012 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Res. 12-17, Approving an Agreement for Engineering 


Services for CIP 2014 with Coastland Engineering Inc. and Authorizing the 
General Manager to Sign (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re Res. 12-18, Resolution Authorizing an Amendment to the 


Contract (between SSWD and CalPERS) (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re FY 2012-13 1st Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operations 


and Capital Expenditures and County Balances (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re District Investment Alternatives (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Progress Report of the Ad Hoc Goals and Objectives 


Formatting Committee  
 Members: Sukey Robb-Wilder, Victoria Wikle (Est. time 10 min.)  
 
F. Discussion/Action re District’s Emergency Response Plan / Participation in 


disaster preparedness exercises (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
G. Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Saddle Failures (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
H. Discussion/Action re Res. 12-19, Approval of the Third Amendment to the 


General Manager’s Employment Agreement (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
I.   Discussion/Action re Res. 12-20, Resolution 12-20 Approving Agreement and 


Grant of Easement with F. Korbel & Bros., Inc. and Accepting Said Grant of 
Easement (Est. time 5 min.) 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 30 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Labor Negotiator pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6   
 District Negotiator: Legal Counsel 
 Unrepresented Employee: General Manager. 
 
B.  Conference with Real Party Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.8 


Property at 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville, CA 
Agency Negotiator: General Manager 
Negotiating Parties: AT&T 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment 


 2







 3


 
 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
October 4, 2012 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Gaylord Schaap  
 Richard Holmer 
 Jim Quigley 
   
Board Members Absent: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     David Warner, Meyers Nave et al. 
      Tim Lipinski 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by Acting President Jim Quigley at 6:31 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
None. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent Calendar items as amended.  Director Holmer 
seconded.  Motion carried 4-0, except that Director Schaap abstained from voting on Item III-B 
(Minutes of the September 27, 2012 Special Board Meeting) because he was not there.  The 
following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the September 6, 2012 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of the Minutes of the September 27, 2012 Special Board Meeting 
 
C. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
D. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: 
 


 1







 (1) Letters (2) dated September 5, 2012 from SDRMA re No Paid Workers 
Compensation or Property/Liability Claims in FY 2011-12 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:32 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Saddle Failures.  The GM provided a brief 


overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.    No action was taken.   
 
B. (6:37 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Engineering Services for CIP 2014.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by 
Tim Lipinski.  Further discussion ensued.  Direction was given to staff to proceed with 
both potential CIP 2014 projects for now, subject to change as more facts are known 
(about project funding).   


C. (7:10 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Res. 12-16, Resolution of Intention to Approve an 
Amendment to Contract Between the Board of Administration of CalPERS and the 
Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs Water District.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Brief discussion ensued.  Director Wikle moved to approve Res. 
12-16, Intention to Approve an Amendment to Contract Between the Board of 
Administration of CalPERS and the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   


D. (7:17 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Crystal Communications lease.  The GM provided 
an overview of this item.  Public comment was made by Tim Lipinski.  No action was 
taken.     


 
E. (7:19 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Renewal of Redwood Credit Union Certificate of 


Deposit.   
 The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Direction was 


given to staff to not renew the Certificate of Deposit and to look at other investment 
options for District funds.  


 
F. (7:35 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Progress Report of the Ad Hoc Goals and 


Objectives Formatting Committee 
 Members: Sukey Robb-Wilder, Victoria Wikle  
 Director Wikle provided an update of the Committee’s progress.   Discussion ensued.  


This item was continued for further discussion at the November Board meeting. 
 
G. (7:38 p.m.) Discussion/Action re District’s Participation in Disaster Preparedness 


Exercises.  The GM provided a brief overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  This 
item was continued to the November Board meeting.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:47 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Russian River Flow at Hacienda 
5. 2013 CIP 
6. USDA Financing 


 2







7. Monte Rio Recreation and Park District (MRR&P) Wonderland Trail 
8. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program 
9. In-House Construction Projects 
10. Gantt Chart 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(7:58 p.m.) 


 
General Manager Steve Mack announced that Tim Lipinski was recommended for appointment to 
the Board vacancy.  Brief discussion ensued.  
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:03 p.m.) 
 
At 8:03 p.m. President Robb-Wilder announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  The 
Board went into Closed Session at 8:04 p.m.  At 8:15 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the 
following actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 
 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 


of Section 54956.9. 
  Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros. et al. 
  No action was taken. 
 


B. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor Negotiator 
District Negotiator: Legal Counsel 
Unrepresented Employee: General Manager 
Direction was given to Legal Counsel. 


 
C. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation 


pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1 
  (This item was pulled from the Agenda.) 
 
 D. Conference with Real Party Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property at 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville, CA 
  Agency Negotiator: General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: AT&T 
  No action was taken. 


 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:45 p.m.) 
 
1. CIP 2014 
2. Goals and Objectives 
3. Investments 
4. CalPERS Contract Amendment (Partial Retirement) 
5. Emergency Response Plan 
6. MRRPD Presentation 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:47 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


 3







 4


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:47 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(7:58 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:03 p.m.)

		C. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:45 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: November 1, 2012  
 
Subject:  APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 12-17 AWARDING A CONTRACT TO 
COASTLAND ENGINEERING FOR DESIGN SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR THE 2014 CIP  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 12-17 awarding a contract to 
Coastland Engineering for design and construction management and inspection 
services for the FY 2014 CIP.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The Coastland proposed cost is $324,361.  Extra services 
allowance of $20,000 result in a not to exceed amount of $344,361.  This cost is 
included in the FY 2013 Budget.     
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has an aggressive Capital Improvement Program (CIP) with a priority aim of 
reducing system water losses.  The CIP has had substantial assistance from the 
Redevelopment program but that is no longer available to assist with future projects, so 
we will need to use reserves, funds developed through water rate revenues or find other 
funding assistance sources.    We have had a substantial number of projects every year 
since 2008.     
 
As we discussed last month the funding for the District’s 2014 (Table 1) is uncertain.  
We are currently requesting funding from the United States Department of Agriculture 
(USDA) which funding may include loan forgiveness.  If the loan forgiveness is 
substantial, it makes sense to include as much in the 2014 CIP as possible and that is 
why we are proposing both the Old Monte Rio Road and Hidden Valley Road elements.  
It will be difficult to construct both projects in the summer of 2013 but we may be able 
to include two years worth of projects in one project for funding from USDA.  Or perhaps 
none of this will happen – no or little loan forgiveness, or if loan forgiveness, perhaps the 
projects can’t be stretched over two years for funding purposes.   
 
However, for this to work out, the projects must be designed this winter.  If it turns out 
that the Hidden Valley Road element can’t be included in the USDA funding or that the 
loan forgiveness is not adequate to make it worthwhile to accept the USDA funding, the 
design can be held off from bidding and/or not included in the USDA project.  It won’t be 
money wasted as the Hidden Valley Project is a needed project and will be constructed 
in the summer of 2014, at the latest.  If the USDA funding does not come through, 
District reserves are adequate to fund these projects.   







RESOLUTION 12-17, DESIGN SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR 2013 CIP 2  
November 1, 2012 
 


 


Completion of these projects will reduce system leakage and improve water service and 
fire protection.   The estimated total cost of the FY 2014 CIP is $1,592,000.   By 
undertaking the design element of this project relatively soon, the project can be ready 
to start construction in late spring 2013 or early next summer.   
 
Staff has been in discussions with Coastland for this proposal since mid September.  We 
have walked the project areas with Coastland staff and had several phone conversations 
with them.  We have reviewed that proposal, discussed it with Coastland, and are 
satisfied with the final version which is attached as Exhibit A.  The proposal has the costs 
broken down between the Old Monte Rio Road and Hidden Valley Road elements.  We 
are proposing that both elements be designed now; the decision on bidding the projects 
will be made later.   
 
If the projects are bid for construction separately (i.e,, in different years), there will be 
an additional cost of approximately $19,000 which is mostly due to separate printing of 
documents and the cost of a separate bidding process.  That cost is not included in this 
authorization.  If we go in that direction, staff will return to the Board of Directors for 
additional authorization which would occur in FY 2014.   
 
The cost of the work proposed by Coastland is $$324,361, split $141,523 for design 
services and $182,838 for construction management and inspection services.    This is 
an appropriate cost for the amount of work requested.  Resolution 12-17 also requests 
$20,000 for additional extra services for a total not-to-exceed amount of $344,361.  
Funds for this contract are in the FY 2013 Budget.      
 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Proposed Fiscal 
Year 2014 CIP   


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost Comments 
2014       


  


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 5,800 lf of 
existing main and appurtenances commencing at 
the Handy Andy Booster and proceeding 
westerly. 50 services 


$936,000  


Needed for flows, fire 
protection, customer 
water quality, leaks  


  Additional Possible Project: 


  


  


  


Hidden Valley Rd (GV) – Replace 3,900 lf of 
existing main and appurtenances on Hidden 
Valley Rd.  67 services $656,000  


Needed for flows, fire 
protection, customer 
water quality, leaks; 
need to figure out 
project 


Total 
2014   $1,592,000    


 
 







RESOLUTION 12-17 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 


FY 2014 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) WITH COASTLAND 
ENGINEERING INC. (COASTLAND) AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 


SIGN  
 


 
 WHEREAS, the FY 2014 CIP consists of the following elements: 
 


 Replacement of approximately 5800 ft of main line on Old Monte Rio Road 
in Guerneville with 50 services.  


 Replacement of approximately 3900 ft of main line on Hidden Valley Road 
in Guernewood Park with 67 services; and  


 
 WHEREAS, completion of these projects will reduce system leakage, improve water 
service and fire protection; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has need of consulting engineering services for design 
and construction management and inspection for the 2014 CIP; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Coastland Engineering has done the engineering services for design 
and construction management and inspection for the 2012 CIP and 2013 CIP and was 
selected through a request for qualifications process in 2011; and: 
 


WHEREAS, staff has been very satisfied with the performance of Coastland 
Engineering for the design and construction management and inspection services for 
the 2012 CIP and 2013 CIP; and 
 


WHEREAS, Coastland proposed an amount of $324,361 for the FY 2014 CIP 
design, construction management and inspection services; and 


 
WHEREAS, staff has reviewed this proposal and finds it responsive to the 


District’s need for the FY 2014 CIP design, construction management and inspection 
services and the price proposed is fair for the needed amount of consulting services; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is appropriate to include an allowance of $20,000 for extra or 
changed work that may be authorized only by express permission or direction by the 
General Manager.  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that: 
 







Resolution 12-17. Agreement for Engineering Services with Coastland for 2014 CIP 
November 1, 2012          2 
 


 


1.  The Agreement for Engineering Services for the 2014 CIP with Coastland, a copy of 
which is attached hereto as Attachment A, is hereby approved in the sum of $324,361 
with an extra services allowance of $20,000, for a total Not to Exceed Amount of 
$344,361; and 
 
2.  The General Manager is authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the 
District. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on 
November 1, 2012, by the following vote: 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle       


 
 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 







smack

Typewritten Text

Exhibit A



smack

Typewritten Text







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  |            
 
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


 
 


 
 
 
 


Table of Contents 
 
 
 
 
 


TITLE         PAGE  
 
 
Understanding & Approach  ............................................................................................................ 1 
 
 
Scope of Work ................................................................................................................................ 3 
 


Design  ................................................................................................................................ 3 
Construction Management & Inspection  ............................................................................ 6 


 
Work Estimate  ................................................................................................................................ 12 
 


Design  ................................................................................................................................ 12 
Construction Management & Inspection  ............................................................................ 17 







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 1 


UNDERSTANDING & APPROACH 
  
The Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) is continuing their ongoing program to replace 
antiquated and undersized water system infrastructure.  Two project sites have been identified 
for fiscal year 2014 in the approved 2010-2015 Capital Improvement Program: portions of Old 
Monte Rio Road (from Santa Rosa Avenue to the dead end of the road) and Hidden Valley 
Road (including Hidden Valley Road West to the existing tank site.) These projects are intended 
to improve water service flows, improve customer water quality, improve fire protection and 
reduce water losses from leaks, while minimizing maintenance for years to come.  
 
Old Monte Rio Road 
 


The Old Monte Rio Road improvements consist of replacing the existing undersized 2-inch 
water main and installing approximately 5,800 feet of new 6-inch water main.  In addition to 
replacing the water main, 50 service connections will be replaced, as well as fire hydrants will 
be added.  This project will also include replacement of existing 2-inch water mains that extend 
from Old Monte Rio Road with installation of 6-inch water mains extending to the areas currently 
served adjacent to George’s Hideaway, services extending west of 18155 Old Monte Rio Road, 
services north of 18433 Old Monte Rio Road and services north of 18475 Old Monte Rio Road.  
In these locations, the water mains extend primarily under existing walking paths and/or cross-
country.  Some of these extensions also include replacement of main crossing and adjacent to 
Highway 116.  Accordingly, coordination with Caltrans for an encroachment permit will be 
necessary.  It is our understanding that wherever possible, the new water mains adjacent to 
Highway 116 should be placed outside of the State Highway right-of-way to avoid ongoing 
issues with maintenance in the State right-of-way. 
 
Some of the water service locations currently have meters set quite a way off Old Monte Rio 
Road.  It is our understanding that all new services will have the meters set in the right-of-way 
and the existing service lines between the existing and new meter locations will be replaced.  As 
some of the existing meter locations are not obvious, you will note that we have had our 
surveyor include time for surveying personnel to coordinate with District personnel in order to 
locate the meters included in the project prior to surveying the road.  We feel this is the most 
prudent approach and will minimize time spent by survey crews looking for meters.  We also 
understand that all water mains and services will be marked out and located prior to the 
beginning of surveying.  Additionally, because some of the water meters on the downhill side of 
the road are quite a ways off the road, we have included profiles of up to 20 downhill 
service/meter locations to provide added information to the contractors bidding the job to give 
them a better idea of the lengths of the service lines and an idea of some of the terrain they will 
encounter. This will be particularly important when contractors will be estimating costs for services 
and will likely prevent disagreements or requests for change orders for materials for services. 
 
Hidden Valley Road 
 


The Hidden Valley Road improvements consist of replacing the existing undersized 2-inch water 
mains with 6-inch water mains in Hidden Valley Road and Hidden Valley Road west.  Project 
limits include starting at the intersection of Cherry Street/Hidden Valley Road and extend to the 
end of Hidden Valley Road, as well as from the intersection of Hidden Valley Road/Hidden 
Valley Road West and extending to the existing tank/booster pump station.  The project includes 
replacement of approximately 3,900 feet of existing main and 67 services, as well as installation 
of fire hydrants.  This project is needed to increase flows, provide better fire protection, improve 
water quality, reduce maintenance from leak repairs and to avoid ongoing issues with 
maintenance of these lines. 
 







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 2 


Additionally, it is our understanding that the District may want have a hydraulic analysis 
completed to see if fire flows would be possible if the existing 13,000-gallon Hidden Valley water 
tank were eliminated.  The elimination of the tank is being considered due to the fact that the 
District currently has to bleed off water from the tank periodically to ensure fresh water with 
sufficient chlorine residual, as water usage from the tank can be low at times due to the fact that 
many of the existing homes in the area are only used seasonally. The analysis would be limited 
to the Hidden Valley Road and Hidden Valley Road West area (from the connection at Cherry 
Street/Hidden Valley Road and extending to the south.)  The analysis would primarily look at 
whether it would be possible to have adequate fire flows in this area without the tank. 
 
During the field visit it was noted that the alignment of the new water line will cross a number of 
existing shallow drainage culverts.  If the County of Sonoma conditions these projects as they 
have in the past, most likely it will require the replacement of several of the pipes.  As we have 
in the past, we will work with the County to have them cover the cost of replacement of the 
culverts. 
 
General Issues 
 


For past projects, the County Redevelopment Agency has contributed money to projects, much 
of which has been used to cover costs associated with paving the streets where the new water 
main has been placed in the streets.  In the past, paving of the streets has been a condition of 
the encroachment permit for the project.  With the State dissolving Redevelopment Agencies, 
monies from the County are no longer available to contribute to the District’s projects.  Based on 
this revised funding constraint, we will need to work with the County during the initial part of the 
projects to determine if they will condition the permit to fully pave all streets where the new 
water main will be installed.  We will do our best to have the County remove the full street 
repaving and limit new paving to trenches in the streets.  If the County continues to insist on 
paving the entire road width, alignments will be adjusted to minimize placement of the water 
lines in the paving areas. 
 
We will continue to coordinate with the County during the design stage to ensure that County 
permit requirements are incorporated into the plans.  At the onset of the project, we will also 
coordinate with the County for all plans associated with the sewer lines within the boundaries of 
both projects.  We will also coordinate with Caltrans for work within Highway 116, including 
obtaining a Caltrans Encroachment Permit and generating a Notice of Exemption for the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 
Because of the issues associated with the services well outside of the roadway in the Old Monte 
Rio Road area and the difficulties this may pose for bidding the project, we will include a 
mandatory pre-bid meeting for all contractors interested in bidding the projects.  By doing this, 
we feel it will provide contractors with information to be able to provide realistic bids. 
 
In talking with the District it is our understanding that the District is making application for 
funding the overall project with USDA funds.  As it is unsure if the application will be approved, 
the District has requested that project costs be separated such that the Old Monte Rio Road 
project and the Hidden Valley Road project can be bid as two separate projects.  Accordingly, 
we have provide pricing for completing this as one overall project with one set of plans and 
specifications, as well as provided costs if the projects were separated.  Please note that if 
USDA funding is approved and the District desires to have the overall project bid, there will be 
added requirements for both the environmental clearances and contract bid documents that will 
need to be incorporated into the overall project to comply with USDA requirements.







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 3 


SCOPE OF WORK - DESIGN 
 
 
The following Scope of Work is based on our understanding of the project details following 
discussions with the District and our detailed site investigation.   


   
Task 1 – Meetings with District Representatives 
 


Immediately after the Notice to Proceed is issued by the District, Coastland will schedule a kick-
off meeting with District staff to gather all background information and complete a thorough site 
review with District Staff to ensure we are aware of all project goals and constraints.  We are 
hoping at this meeting to clarify if there are any existing water services that the District may 
replace (as opposed to the contractor) due to the difficult locations of some of the existing 
meters on Old Monte Rio Road.  If any of the services will be partially or fully replaced by the 
District, this will be noted in the plans. 
 
Included in this task will be one (1) project kick-off / pre-design meeting to discuss project goals 
and coordination efforts and three (3) progress design review meetings.  
 
Task 2 – Background Information 
 


We will assemble all of the available District, County and Caltrans information. Coastland has 
already conducted two preliminary site reviews for the purpose of preparing this proposal.  Our 
goal is to further analyze existing site characteristics through completion of the site review with 
District staff, observing general site conditions and utilities to identify opportunities for 
improvements.  Our site review will enable us to identify any unusual or special conditions that 
may affect the project design or construction.  Additionally, between the kickoff meeting and the 
site review, we will identify any water services that the District may elect to complete with their 
crews as opposed to the contractor. 
 
Task 3 – Coordination with Agencies 
 


We propose to coordinate with outside utility companies to ensure that all existing facilities, both 
underground and overhead, are identified accurately during the design phase.  This task will 
include writing letters to PG&E, AT&T, Comcast, Ferrell Gas, Sonoma County (storm drain and 
retaining walls), and the Sonoma County Water Agency (sanitary sewer) informing them of the 
project and requesting their facility drawings.   
 
Under this task we will follow up with each utility provider by preparing submittal packages to 
each so they can verify the accuracy of their facilities and the need for relocation. In addition to 
the agencies listed above we will prepare a submittal to Steve Baxman at the Monte Rio Fire 
Protection District for review of the proposed fire hydrant locations. 
 
As part of our background research for this proposal, we have reviewed the State’s Geotracker 
website to find out if any of the areas of work are within or adjacent to the project has known 
areas of soil or groundwater contamination.  Per our research, no contamination issues were 
found within the project boundaries.  Accordingly, we do not anticipate having to coordinate with 
the Regional Water Quality Control Board for this project. 
 
For work performed within the Caltrans right of way we will coordinate with Caltrans to obtain an 
Encroachment Permit. This effort will include preparing a Notice of Exemption in accordance 
with CEQA, and providing this to the District for adoption and recordation with the County, 
preparing and submitting the Encroachment Permit Application to Caltrans, coordination with 
Caltrans to obtain the permit and incorporation of Caltrans requirements into the bid documents. 







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 4 


We will assist the District with preparing the CEQA Notice of Exemption for acceptance by the 
District Board, but we have not included time for someone to be present at the Board meeting. 
We would be happy to assist at the meeting as additional work if desired. 
 
For work proposed within the County right-of-way, we will coordinate with the County to obtain 
an Encroachment Permit.  Based on recent experience on the FY 2013 Capital Improvement 
Project and the elimination of the County’s Redevelopment Agency and the changes this may 
have on paving requirements, the effort required to obtain the County’s requirements for work 
within the right-of-way is expected to be significant. We have included time for extensive 
coordination via email and phone conversations, as well as a meeting with the County and our 
Construction Manager to discuss feasibility of County requirements during construction.  
 
Please note that as of the writing of this proposal, it is unclear if USDA funding will be used for 
any portion of this project.  Accordingly, we have not included any time associated with 
coordinating with local USDA representatives for this project.  If it is determined that USDA 
funding is going to be used for part of this project, we will review the requirements with the 
District to see what, if any, impacts this may have with respect to coordinating with USDA during 
the project.  If it is determined that impacts will be significant enough to warrant a change in 
scope, we will provide the District with a revised scope and fee for the tasks that will be 
impacted. 
 
Task 4 –Surveying  
 


Cinquini & Passarino (CPI) of Santa Rosa will complete a topographic survey to support the 
design efforts for this project.  The District will be provided with conventional and proven ground 
topographic surveys of the project sites.  These topographic surveys may include features such 
as, but not limited to; edges of pavement, buildings, fences, striping and pavement markings, 
utility poles, meter boxes, valve boxes, overhead wires, driveway locations, trees six (6) inches 
and larger, drip line radii, limits of retaining walls, viaduct cross sections, sanitary sewer and 
storm drain facilities including inverts, subsurface utilities marked or found, steps/stairs, trails 
and any other pertinent information that could apply to the project during design. 
 
Topographic surveys will be performed within the apparent public right-of-way throughout the 
project reach.    Record public right-of-way, including Highway 116, will be drafted and placed 
on the topographic survey.  This will include research and tying existing monumentation along 
Highway 116.  No additional boundary surveying should be necessary for this project and 
therefore not included within this scope of work. 
 
CPI will provide Coastland with a map in AutoCAD format showing existing topographic features 
and utilities along the project reach based on the above described approach.   The map will be 
at a 1 inch = 20 feet scale unless otherwise requested.  
 
Do to the non-standard locations of some of the existing water meters on the downhill side of 
Old Monte Rio Road, prior to completing the field work for Old Monte Rio Road our surveyor has 
allocated a separate meeting to coordinate with District staff in the field to determine the location 
of off-roadway water meters and service alignments.  They have budgeted 4 hours for this field 
meeting and an additional 16 hours of field surveying time to pick up the necessary topographic 
features over the water service alignments. 
 
Task 5 –65% Submittal  
 


Following our background research, utility coordination, survey and field review with District 
staff, we will develop a preliminary design for mainline and service replacement.  We will review 
our approach with District staff to assure all District goals are met.  Based on District input we 
will adjust our approach and prepare a 65% submittal.  The submittal will include all water main 







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 5 


and services improvements.  Also included in this submittal will be a recommended construction 
method for the new water main at the culvert crossings on Hidden Valley Road, Old Monte Rio 
Road and any other challenging crossings discovered in our field investigations or gathering 
background information. We will provide the District with a summary of our evaluation of the 
design options and our findings of the most cost effective and feasible design approach at this 
location. 
 
Prior to the 65% submittal, we will work with both District staff and the District’s attorney to come 
up with acceptable language for the bid documents that will ensure contractors have adequate 
experience with HDPE pipe installations, but not be as restrictive as the language that was used 
for the 2013 project. 
 
The 65% submittal will include three (3) sets of full- size plans, draft technical specifications, 
and an engineer’s estimate of probable construction costs.  We will include submittals to 
Caltrans, the County and utility providers. 
 
Task 6 – 95% Submittal 
 


Following the District’s review of the 65% submittal, we will prepare the 95% submittal.  The 
submittal will address all comments on the 65% submittal and will essentially be a 
comprehensive design package.  The plans will include details for all improvements.  The 
specifications will be complete.  The 95% submittal will include three (3) sets of full-size plans, 
specifications and an engineer’s cost estimate.  Also included in this submittal will be roadway 
improvement limits and the proposed repair methods based on coordination with the County.   
 
As part of the effort for the 95% submittal we will coordinate with the District’s attorney to 
complete a brief review of the front-end specifications. 
 
Coastland’s Construction Management Department will perform a constructability review of the 
contract documents.  Through this review, we will help minimize claims and potential change 
orders.   
 
Task 7 - 100% Plans & Specifications 
 


Following the review of the 95% submittal, Coastland will prepare the final construction 
drawings, specifications and estimate signed by a California registered Civil Engineer.  We will 
provide a final electronic submittal to the District for a final review to verify comments have been 
addressed prior to producing the 100% bid documents.  Upon final District review we will 
provide stamped and signed mylar drawings and camera-ready specifications.  An electronic 
copy of the drawings, specifications and final cost estimate will also be provided in both PDF 
and AutoCAD formats. 
 
 
Optional Task – Hydraulic Evaluation 
 


If desired, we can hydraulically model the Hidden Valley Road/Hidden Valley Road West water 
system to find out if adequate fire flows would exist if the existing water line was upsized from 2-inch 
to 6-inch and the existing 13,000-gallon water tank is eliminated.  This work will include performing a 
computer hydraulic model of the 3,900 ft. of water main in this area, including domestic demands from 
the existing services, as well as fire flows in the hydrants.  The intent of the analysis is to see if the 
existing 13,000-gallon water reservoir can be eliminated, while still meeting 500 gpm fire flows and 
residual pressures of 20 psi.  We will summarize our findings in a technical memo to the District that 
will list our assumptions, show the model, list the results and our recommendation.







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 6 


SCOPE OF WORK - CONSTRUCTION 
 
 


Task 1 – Design and Bid Support  
 


Coastland will provide the Notice to Bidders for advertisement in local papers.  We will also 
reproduce and distribute the construction documents to local plan rooms and contractors.  
During the bidding process, we will answer any questions that may arise and maintain a phone 
log of inquiries.  We will prepare any addenda that may be necessary.  Coastland will also 
conduct the bid opening, tabulate results and review the apparent low bidder’s bid package.  As 
part of the bid review we will coordinate with the District’s attorney for review the apparent low 
bidder’s bonds, contractor’s license verification and insurance.  
 
As this project includes unique water service replacement conditions on Old Monte Rio Road 
and water main replacement on the foot trail from the end of Hidden Valley Road West to the 
existing water tank, we will conduct a mandatory pre-bid meeting with interested contractors and 
District staff.  This meeting will include a brief meeting at the District office and a field visit to the 
more challenging portions of the project to ensure that contractors clearly understand the 
constraints associated with this project. 
 
Once the review of the bid has been completed we will prepare a bid summary and forward it to 
the District for bid award concurrence. 
 
Once awarded, we will provide a draft Notice of Award letter to the District for signature and 
mailing to the low bidder.  Once the low bidder submits all required documents, we will review 
all submitted documents for compliance with the requirements in the Construction Documents 
(bonds, insurance, signed contract, etc.)  Once all information is verified, we will provide the 
District with a draft Notice to Proceed letter to send to the contractor and set up the Pre-
Construction meeting.  Please note that the time associated with this task does not include any 
time necessary for bid protests.  If a bid protest is issued by any of the other bidders, we can 
provide this as extra service on a time and materials basis, as the time necessary to process the 
protest is unknown. 
 
Additionally, Coastland’s Design Engineer will be readily available to coordinate with our 
construction team to provide valuable insight.  The Engineer’s involvement in the construction 
phase will ensure important issues are highlighted and all project design issues are addressed 
promptly.  
 
Our proposal also includes providing the contractor with five (5) sets of plans and specifications.  
 
Task 2 – Pre-Construction Meeting  
 


Immediately following the approval of all submitted information for award of the construction 
contract, we will schedule and administer the pre-construction meeting. During this meeting we 
will establish lines of communication and decision making roles with all project stakeholders.  
We will discuss safety requirements, team member responsibilities, working hours, quality 
control procedures, submittal requirements, project schedule, change order and potential claim 
procedures, and safety procedures.   
 
Coastland will be responsible for generating pre-construction meeting invitations including the 
meeting agenda.  Agenda items include lines of communication, public relations, safety, 
submittals, change procedures, payments, progress schedules, contract time, requests for 
information, expectations, and other applicable items.  Coastland will prepare and distribute 
meeting minutes to all parties.   







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 7 


Following the pre-construction meeting, Coastland will continue to work closely with the District 
teams, Design Engineer, and contractor to ensure that all project issues are addressed promptly 
and that the District’s best interests are considered at all times.  
 
Task 3 – Pre-Construction Site Visit and Documentation 
 


Coastland will take pre-construction digital photos of the construction site with special attention 
given to sensitive areas including all private properties adjacent to the project.  We will also 
document residential front yards to ensure all landscaping is returned to its original state.  
Documenting the site prior to construction will help mitigate possible disputes between the 
District, contractor and property owners within or adjacent to the project limits. These photos will 
be logged, labeled and filed with the project files.   
 
Task 4 – Project Start-Up 
 


Coastland will assemble project files in accordance with the District’s standard format for 
administration.  Coastland uses Primavera Contract Manager software as a centralized system 
for document control to create, store, organize, track, and link all project information.  Primavera 
Contract Manager software will distill the constant flow of paperwork to a form that quickly and 
easily identifies trends and critical issues and will help keep the project moving as it helps 
document the work.  The use of Contract Manager reduces administrative costs, facilitates 
clearer communication, enhances the sense of a “team effort,” and reduces the number of 
disputes.  
 
Task 5 - Daily Field Inspections and Documentation 
 


A critical aspect of our services is maintaining close communication with District staff to ensure 
scheduling/quality goals are met.  To help maintain close communication, Coastland’s inspector 
will be accessible to the District at all times at the project site and through the use of email and 
cellular phones.  Coastland’s on-site inspector will examine all construction activities to ensure 
that the contract work adheres to the contract documents, District standards and the established 
schedule. 
   
We will maintain records and provide documentation of the work in the form of daily reports, 
working days statements, weekly summary of construction activities, deficiency lists, and 
progress photographs of construction activities.  Daily reports will describe the contractor’s level 
of effort, specific work being done, started, or completed, and relevant points raised by the 
contractor that may require consideration and response.  We also document proposed change 
orders and claims, important conversations, safety issues or accidents, extra work in progress, 
materials testing performed, information for “as-built” drawings, quantities for progress 
payments, environmental concerns and hazardous materials.   
 
Coastland will provide a digital photo logbook of construction activities, progress, and areas of 
concern or interest.   The photo log will be compiled on CD’s and will identify the location and 
date of each photo.  The log will be maintained through the duration of the project to assure 
continuity from one week to the next, and will be submitted to the District at the close of the 
project.  
 
Coastland will continually review the specifications and plans to ensure the work is of good 
quality and meets the requirements of the contract documents.  This review can improve 
constructability, reduce costs, eliminate ambiguities and improve clarity. We will immediately 
report any deviation from the approved contract documents.   
 
In summary, our Inspector’s responsibilities include: 
 







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 8 


    Inspect the contractor’s work for conformance to the contract documents, codes, 
regulations and District standards on a daily basis.   


    Prepare and submit daily inspection reports that document all job site activities.  
    Serve as a daily contact for the contractor as to performance of the construction. 
    Respond promptly to District requests. 
    Participate in meetings with District staff, contractor and other involved agencies. 
    Verify construction material quantities.  
    Monitor traffic control procedures to make certain that access is maintained during 


construction. 
    Distribute notifications to impacted public regarding the status of construction.  
    Document construction activities with photographs and maintain a photo log.  
    Respond to calls from the public promptly and log any complaints in a timely manner.   
    Prepare and maintain current redlined construction drawings, documenting unforeseen 


field conditions and changes to check the contractor’s record drawings. 
    Identify actual and potential problems and resolve issues by proposing field changes to 


avoid any delays.  
    Document and maintain complete field files containing construction period 


correspondences, changes, discussions with contractor, memos, reports, and other 
pertinent items.  


 
Task 6 – Progress Meetings & Coordination  
 


Coastland will conduct weekly or as needed coordination and progress meetings to focus on 
completed and upcoming work, any construction delays, updating the schedule, proposed 
changes, change orders, contractor’s questions, public relations, safety and other concerns that 
are identified by a project team member.  We will work to foster honest, open communication at 
these weekly meetings which will help in timely resolution of any disputes and potential claims. 
 
Task 7 – Status Reports and Documentation 
 


7a – Reports: It is important to keep the District informed regarding public relations, progress of 
the work and costs of the project.  We will document construction issues with the following: 
Weekly Statement of Working Days, Progress Meeting Minutes, Field Directive Log, change 
order tracking and regular phone calls and e-mails.  
 


7b – Submittal Management: Coastland will coordinate all submittals and monitor the status of 
the submittals to assure the contractor provides timely response.  At the pre-construction 
conference, we will provide the contractor with a log of all required submittals and due dates.   
Submittals will be stamped, logged and distributed to our in-house project engineer that was 
responsible for the design of the project for complete review and approval.  Submittals will be 
filed numerically and approved copies will be distributed to the District, project members, and 
the contractor.  
 


7c – Requests for Information (RFI): Coastland will receive and log all Requests for Information 
(RFI’s) from the contractor, and forward the RFI to the designer.  Coastland will track the status 
of all RFI’s by generating a weekly RFI log that lists the “Ball-in-court” status, description, and if 
an RFI results in a potential change order.   
 


7d – Change Order Management: In the event that a change order is required, Coastland will 
negotiate the changes with the contractor and prepare documentation.  All changes will be 
approved by the contractor, Coastland and the District prior to starting work on the change.  
With the District’s approval, Coastland can negotiate with the contractor to produce the best 
construction method for the change at the lowest cost.  If a change order requires input from the 
design engineer, our Construction Manager will coordinate with them to ensure it is reviewed.   
A Change Order Log will be created that will show Change Order number, description, status, 
approved date, start and completion dates and cost.  
 







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 9 


Task 8 – Construction Management 
 


Our goal is to ensure that construction and contract administration are performed in compliance 
with District requirements and the project plans and specifications.  To accomplish this goal, our 
Construction Manager will oversee inspection and manage the day-to-day construction activities 
with the contractor.  He will be accessible to the District at all times.  The Construction Manager 
will be responsible for keeping the District informed of the progress of the project, changes that 
may be needed, pay estimate input and releasing information to the public. Our Construction 
Manager will be available to discuss the best possible options for uncommon situations or 
contractor issues that impact the project.  In addition, our Construction Manager will complete all 
contract administration documentation in a timely, accurate and orderly fashion. 
 
Task 9 – Cost and Schedule Management 
 


Coastland will continually review construction progress and perform field measurements and 
quantity calculations.   Each month Coastland will provide accurate calculations for all work 
items completed and accepted to provide progress payment recommendations to the District.  
Coastland will review the contractor’s progress pay estimate request and schedule of values to 
assess if they are accurate, and will compare this to the field measurements and quantity 
calculations.  Coastland will continually monitor project costs and keep the District informed on a 
regular basis.  
 
Coastland will review the contractor’s construction schedule for accuracy, reasonableness, and 
will verify that it meets the project schedule, order of work, and contract requirements.  Progress 
schedules will be reviewed weekly to ensure the contractor is meeting the critical dates.  If he 
fails to meet critical dates, it will immediately be brought to his attention and remedies to get 
back on schedule will be accomplished.  Schedule updates may be required once a month or 
more.  We will negotiate any time extensions for the contractor due to change orders, weather 
or other delays.  
 
Task 10 - Public Relations and Notifications  
 


To be proactive in eliminating any public concerns, Coastland will ensure every effort is made to 
keep the public informed of construction progress and minimize disruptions to traffic and parking 
throughout the project area. Our Inspector will provide introductions to the public and provide his 
contact phone number to all residents.  Coastland will log and respond to questions and 
concerns from the public in a timely manner and will record the contractor’s activities as they 
relate to public safety and public convenience.  Additionally, Coastland will accurately document 
pre-construction conditions with a photo log to verify the project area is restored to its original 
form following construction.  Our goal is to minimize calls to the District by using our on-site 
inspector / construction manager to respectfully communicate with residents and discuss any 
concerns.  
 
Task 11 – Conflict Resolution and Claim Management 
 


Coastland’s goal is to avoid all unnecessary claims and resolve conflicts during construction.  
The starting point for avoiding conflicts or notices of potential claims is a clear, biddable set of 
plans and specifications.  To promote effective conflict resolution, our Construction Manager 
and Inspector will become intimately familiar with the project plans, specifications, the District 
Standards, and issues specific to this project.   
 
We will assist in the resolution of conflicts quickly by keeping the lines of communication open, 
and being open and responsive with the contractor.  Progress meetings are important to foster 
communications and to resolve conflicts quickly.  We have found that most conflicts can be 
thoroughly discussed and defused at these meetings.  The key is to foster a good, working 







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 10 


rapport with the contractor and demonstrate that we are trustworthy, honest and professional 
which Coastland staff currently has with local contractors.   
 
Additionally, Coastland will maintain thorough documentation of the contractor’s field activities 
so that we know exactly what, when, where and why an issue or conflict occurred, and not have 
to rely on memory or the contractor’s version of what happened.   
 
These tasks help reduce the likelihood of change orders during construction or post-
construction claims from the contractor; however, if claims are filed at the completion of the 
project we will have the documentation to assist in any negotiations.    
 
If we cannot successfully facilitate a resolution of a dispute and receive a Notice of Potential 
Claim from the contractor, we will be ready to support the District’s position.  Coastland 
maintains accurate and thoroughly documented project information as backup for claim 
resolution. Coastland will continue facilitating negotiations while tracking and logging all 
correspondence, as-built progress schedules, and other backup documentation. 
 
No work will be performed under this task unless specifically authorized in writing by District 
staff. 
 
Task 12 – Post-Construction Meeting  
 


Following completion of the work, Coastland will organize and conduct the post-construction 
meeting.  The meeting will document all requirements necessary for final closeout and payment, 
and confirm all contract obligations have been met.  Recommendations for improvement will be 
made and incorporated into future projects.  The results of the meeting will be summarized in 
meeting minutes.  
 
Task 13 – Project Closeout  
 


Coastland will help the District comply with all pertinent requirements and verify completion of 
punch list items, obtain closing documentation from permitting agencies, verify mitigation 
measures have been implemented, issue Notice of Completion, prepare recommendations for 
final acceptance of the project, review as-built plans for accuracy and completeness, prepare 
and recommend final payment, and transmit all construction documentation to the District.  At 
the completion of the project, we will provide the District with the following: 
 


    Record drawings (red-lined hard copy on bond) 
    All contract files and records (hard file & electronic) 
    Annotated journal of photos and CD of digital photos 


 


 







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 11 


EXCEPTIONS TO SCOPE OF WORK 
 
The following work is not included in our proposal.  However, Coastland would be pleased to 
provide these services if the District desires:  
 


  Environmental assistance/soil contamination. 
  Geotechnical evaluation. 
  Right-of-way determination or preparation of associated documents. 
  Permitting fees. 
  Potholing of utility locations, associated survey or coordination. 
  Construction staking to be provided by contractor. 


 
 
 


SCHEDULE 
 
We understand the District’s goal is to have these projects constructed next season.  After 
assessing the project site, discussing the project with District staff, and considering our specific 
approach to this project, we are confident that our team is able to meet your scheduling goals in 
being able to complete the project and get it to bid in the late winter or early spring of 2013.   
 
Based on our review of the project site, we have estimated a total of 130 working days for 
construction (assuming it is one overall project) and have prepared our estimate accordingly. If the 
Hidden Valley Road project site is constructed as a standalone project, we estimate that 
construction can be completed in 60 working days.  If the Old Monte Rio Road project is constructed 
as a standalone project, we estimate that construction can be completed in 70 working days.  We 
have prepared estimates for each of these alternatives. 







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 12 


WORK ESTIMATE - DESIGN 
    
 


Based on our Scope of Work for design services, we have prepared a detailed budget that 
identifies staffing rates, total cost per task, and direct expenses.   
 
As noted in the proposal, we have prepared work estimates for two different options for this 
project.  Option 1 is that this project is completed as one overall project.  Option 2 is if the 
project was split into two separate projects with two separate sets of bid documents 
(plans/specification.)  The following are estimates for those options. 
 
Option 1 – Old Monte Rio Road and Hidden Valley Road Constructed as One Project 
 


If the overall project is constructed as one overall project and there is one set of plans, one 
estimate and one set of bid documents, we are proposing that the services associated with this 
project all be completed for a not-to-exceed fee of $140,238 (see following Work Estimate).  
This amount assumes all of the work for this project will fall under the Scope of Work described 
in our proposal.  Additionally, if the District desires us to complete the hydraulic modeling study, 
this optional task will be an additional $1,285. 
 
Please also note that in the not-to-exceed amount, we have included an estimated amount of 
$2,172 for reimbursable expenses (i.e. printing, plotting, mileage, final mylars, copies and 
binding).  These reimbursable costs will be billed at cost plus 15%. 
 
Option 2 – Project Split Up into Two Projects 
 


Based on potential funding from USDA for the project, it is our understanding that the District 
may want to construction the project in two phases.  Our understanding is that the Old Monte 
Rio Road project will be constructed regardless of the USDA funding application and that the 
Hidden Valley Road is somewhat dependent on USDA funding if it is to be included this year.  
Accordingly, we have prepared cost estimates assuming that each project can be stand-alone 
projects and bid separately. 
 


• Hidden Valley Road – if the Hidden Valley Road portion of the project is prepared as a 
separate set of bid documents, we are proposing that the services associated with the 
Hidden Valley Road portion of the project be completed for a not-to-exceed fee of $59,330 
(see Work Estimate following).  This amount assumes all of the work for this project will fall 
under the Scope of Work described in our proposal.  Additionally, if the District desires us to 
complete the hydraulic modeling study, this optional task will be an additional $1,285. 


 
Please also note that in the not-to-exceed amount, we have included an estimated amount 
of $966 for reimbursable expenses (i.e. printing, plotting, mileage, final mylars, copies and 
binding) for two completely separate sets of bid documents.  These reimbursable costs will 
be billed at cost plus 15%. 


 
• Old Monte Rio Road – if the Old Monte Rio Road portion of the project is prepared as a 


separate set of bid documents, we are proposing that the services associated with the Old 
Monte Rio Road portion of the project be completed for a not-to-exceed fee of $96,484 (see 
following Work Estimate).  This amount assumes all of the work for this project will fall under 
the Scope of Work described in our proposal.   


 
Please also note that in the not-to-exceed amount, we have included an estimated amount 
of $1,631 for reimbursable expenses (i.e. printing, plotting, mileage, final mylars, copies and 
binding) for two completely separate sets of bid documents.  These reimbursable costs will 







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 13 


be billed at cost plus 15%. 
 
As can be seen from the estimates, if the overall project is done as a single project, there will be 
a savings of $15,576. 
 
The above fee quotation should be considered a negotiable offer.  If the District wishes to 
modify the proposed Scope of Work, we would be happy to discuss such a change and how it 
would affect the overall project cost.  We can either discuss amendments to the existing Scope 
or provide these services on a time and materials basis per our adopted schedule of hourly 
rates and then modify the Work Estimate accordingly. 
 







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 14 


Principal Supervis Associate CAD Admin Const Total Total Subconsultant / 
Task Engineer Engineer Engineer Designer Manag


# $175 $145 $119 $135 $70 $135 Hours Cost Notes 


1 Meeting with District    
Kick Off Meeting (1) 4 4 8 $1,240
Progress Design Review (3) 12 12 24 $3,720


Subtotal 32 $4,960


2 Background Information
Background Mapping 12 12 $1,620
Field Review with District 8 8 16 $2,480
Photo Log 4 4 $280


Subtotal 32 $4,380
3 Coordination with Agencies


Coordination with Utility Companies 8 8 $1,080
Coordination with Caltrans 10 10 $1,750
Coordination with County 16 8 4 28 $4,420
CEQA Notice of Exemption 2 1 3 $420


Subtotal 49 $7,670


4 Surveying
Topographic Survey - Hidden Valley Rd. $16,166 Cinquini & Passarino
Topographic Survey - Old Monte Rio Rd. $25,164 Cinquini & Passarino
Topo Survey - difficult  water services on 
Old Monte Rio Rd - budget


$7,731 Cinquini & Passarino


Caltrans R/W determination $6,811 Cinquini & Passarino
Coordination with Surveyor 1 12 13 $1,795


Subtotal 13 $57,666
5 65%  Submittal


Improvement Plans 32 164 196 $27,740  
Preliminary Specifications 2 12 6 20 $2,198
Preliminary Cost Estimate 1 4 12 17 $2,271
QC Review/Value Engineering 8 8 $1,160  


Subtotal 241 $33,369
6 95%  Submittal


Improvement Plan Revisions 28 104 132 $18,940
Specifications 2 8 8 18 $1,862
Coordination with District 's Attorney 2 2 $350
Cost Estimate 1 2 8 11 $1,493
QC Review/Constructability Review 8 4 12 $1,700


Subtotal 175 $24,345
7 100%  Submittal


Final Documents 8 4 24 8 44 $5,676
Subtotal 44 $5,676


Miscellaneous Costs $2,172 Es t mileage , pho to s , 
repro ductio n, mylars


Total Hours 129 16 30 376 27 8 586


Total Cost $22,575 $2,320 $3,570 $50,760 $1,890 $1,080 $140,238


Hydraulic Computer Model 0.5 6 6.5 $802
Technical Memo outlining findings 1 2 1 4 $483


Subtotal 10.5 $1,285


Optional Task - Hidden Valley Rd Hydraulic Analysis


Task Description


WORK ESTIMATE
FY 2014 Projects - Overall Project Sweetwater Springs Water DistrictProposal for Design Services


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 15 


Principal Supervis Associate CAD Admin Const Total Total Subconsultant / 
Task Engineer Engineer Engineer Designer Manag


# $175 $145 $119 $135 $70 $135 Hours Cost Notes 


1 Meeting with District    


Kick Off Meeting (1) 4 4 8 $1,240
Progress Design Review (3) 12 12 24 $3,720


Subtotal 32 $4,960


2 Background Information
Background Mapping 6 6 $810
Field Review with District 4 4 8 $1,240
Photo Log 2 2 $140


Subtotal 16 $2,190


3 Coordination with Agencies
Coordination with Utility Companies 4 4 $540
Coordination with Caltrans 0 $0
Coordination with County 8 4 2 14 $2,210
CEQA Notice of Exemption 2 1 3 $420


Subtotal 21 $3,170


4 Surveying
Topographic Survey - Hidden Valley Rd. $16,166 Cinquini & Passarino
Coordination with Surveyor 1 6 7 $985


Subtotal 7 $17,151


5 65%  Submittal
Improvement Plans 12 70 82 $11,550  
Preliminary Specifications 2 12 6 20 $2,198
Preliminary Cost Estimate 1 2 6 9 $1,223
QC Review/Value Engineering 6 6 $870  


Subtotal 117 $15,841


6 95%  Submittal
Improvement Plan Revisions 12 40 52 $7,500
Specifications 2 8 8 18 $1,862
Coordination with District 's Attorney 2 2 $350
Cost Estimate 1 2 4 7 $953
QC Review/Constructability Review 6 4 10 $1,410


Subtotal 89 $12,075


7 100%  Submittal
Final Documents 4 2 12 6 24 $2,978


Subtotal 24 $2,978


Miscellaneous Costs $966 Es t mileage , pho to s , repro duc tio n, 
mylars


Total Hours 67 12 26 172 23 6 306


Total Cost $11,725 $1,740 $3,094 $23,220 $1,610 $810 $59,330


Hydraulic Computer Model 0.5 6 6.5 $802
Technical Memo outlining findings 1 2 1 4 $483


Subtotal 10.5 $1,285


Optional Task - Hidden Valley Rd Hydraulic Analysis


WORK ESTIMATE
FY 2014 Projects - Hidden Valley 


Rd
Proposal for Design Services Sweetwater Springs Water District


Task Description


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 16 


Principal Supervis Associate CAD Admin Const Total Total Subconsultant / 
Task Engineer Engineer Engineer Designer Manag


# $175 $145 $119 $135 $70 $135 Hours Cost Notes 


1 Meeting with District    


Kick Off Meeting (1) 4 4 8 $1,240
Progress Design Review (3) 12 12 24 $3,720


Subtotal 32 $4,960


2 Background Information
Background Mapping 8 8 $1,080
Field Review with District 6 6 12 $1,860
Photo Log 4 4 $280


Subtotal 24 $3,220


3 Coordination with Agencies
Coordination with Utility Companies 6 6 $810
Coordination with Caltrans 10 10 $1,750
Coordination with County 8 4 2 14 $2,210
CEQA Notice of Exemption 2 1 3 $420


Subtotal 33 $5,190


4 Surveying
Topographic Survey - Old Monte Rio Rd. $25,164 Cinquini & Passarino
Topo Survey - difficult  water services on 
Old Monte Rio Rd - budget


$7,731 Cinquini & Passarino


Caltrans R/W determination $6,811 Cinquini & Passarino
Coordination with Surveyor 1 8 9 $1,255


Subtotal 9 $40,961


5 65%  Submittal
Improvement Plans 20 104 124 $17,540  
Preliminary Specifications 2 12 6 20 $2,198
Preliminary Cost Estimate 1 4 8 13 $1,731
QC Review/Value Engineering 6 6 $870  


Subtotal 163 $22,339


6 95%  Submittal
Improvement Plan Revisions 16 56 72 $10,360
Specifications 2 8 8 18 $1,862
Coordination with District 's Attorney 2 2 $350
Cost Estimate 1 2 6 9 $1,223
QC Review/Constructability Review 6 4 10 $1,410


Subtotal 111 $15,205


7 100%  Submittal
Final Documents 4 2 12 6 24 $2,978


Subtotal 24 $2,978


Miscellaneous Costs $1,631 Es t mileage , pho to s , repro duc tio n, 
mylars


Total Hours 91 12 28 234 25 6 396


Total Cost $15,925 $1,740 $3,332 $31,590 $1,750 $810 $96,484


WORK ESTIMATE
FY 2014 Projects - Old Monte Rio 


Rd Proposal for Design Services Sweetwater Springs Water District


Task Description


 
 
 
 
 







 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 17 


WORK ESTIMATE - CONSTRUCTION 
  
As noted in the proposal, we have prepared work estimates for two different options for this 
project.  Option 1 is that this project is completed as one overall project.  Option 2 is if the 
project was split into two separate projects with two separate sets of bid documents 
(plans/specification.)  The following are estimates for those options. 
   
Option 1 – Old Monte Rio Road and Hidden Valley Road Constructed as One Project 
 
Based on a preliminary review of the project, we estimate the project duration to last 
approximately 130 working days, assuming the project is constructed as one overall project.  As 
can be seen on the attached Work Estimate sheet, our efforts include part-time construction 
management (at 12.5 hours per week) and full-time inspection (at 40 hours per week.)  Our 
proposal does not include any overtime work, nor work for more than one inspector during the 
day.  Our proposal also includes factors such as attending meetings, project closeout and 
vehicle costs.  Based on these assumptions, we propose that the work associated with the 
Construction Observation portion of this project can be provided on a time and materials basis 
for a not-to exceed fee of $182,838 (see following work estimate).  
 
Please note that the number of working days was determined based on our best estimate of the 
project at this time.  During the design of the project, additional information may come up that 
may change this estimate. If this occurs, we reserve the right to make modifications to our 
estimate based on the number of days determined after completion of the design.  At that time, 
we can provide the district with any modifications that may be needed prior to award of the 
construction contract so it can be done simultaneously. 
 
Also, please note that if the contract time extends beyond 130 working days (due to the inability 
of the contractor to complete the work in a timely manner), or the scope or level of services 
change, our costs may also increase.  Similarly, if the contract time is reduced, charges will 
decrease accordingly.  We propose to re-evaluate this Work Estimate after the design is 
complete and the actual contract time is determined. 
 
Option 2 – Project Split Up into Two Projects 
 
 Hidden Valley Road – if the Hidden Valley Road portion of the project is constructed as a 


stand-alone project, we estimate that this project have a duration of 60 working days. All the 
assumptions with respect to time spent weekly for construction management and inspection 
apply to our estimate for this project.  Based on an estimated duration of 60 working days, 
we propose that the work associated with this portion of the project be completed on a time 
and materials basis for a not-to-exceed fee of $85,304 (see following Work Estimate).  This 
amount assumes all of the work for this project will fall under the Scope of Work described in 
our proposal.   
 
Please note that the number of working days was determined based on our best estimate of 
the project at this time.  During the design of the project, additional information may come up 
that may change this estimate. If this occurs, we reserve the right to make modifications to 
our estimate based on the number of days determined after completion of the design.  At 
that time, we can provide the district with any modifications that may be needed prior to 
award of the construction contract so it can be done simultaneously. 
 
 







 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 18 


Also, please note that if the contract time extends beyond 60 working days (due to the 
inability of the contractor to complete the work in a timely manner), or the scope or level of 
services change, our costs may also increase.  Similarly, if the contract time is reduced, 
charges will decrease accordingly.  We propose to re-evaluate this Work Estimate after the 
design is complete and the actual contract time is determined. 
 


 Old Monte Rio Road – if the Old Monte Rio Road portion of the project is constructed as a 
separate stand-alone project, we estimate that this project have a duration of 70 working 
days. All the assumptions with respect to time spent weekly for construction management 
and inspection apply to our estimate for this project.  Based on an estimated duration of 70 
working days, we propose that the work associated with this portion of the project be 
completed on a time and materials basis for a not-to-exceed fee of $101,865 (see following 
Work Estimate).  This amount assumes all of the work for this project will fall under the 
Scope of Work described in our proposal. 


 
Please note that the number of working days was determined based on our best estimate of 
the project at this time.  During the design of the project, additional information may come up 
that may change this estimate.  If this occurs, we reserve the right to make modifications to 
our estimate based on the number of days determined after completion of the design.  At 
that time, we can provide the district with any modifications that may be needed prior to 
award of the construction contract so it can be done simultaneously. 
 
Also, please note that if the contract time extends beyond 70 working days (due to the 
inability of the contractor to complete the work in a timely manner), or the scope or level of 
services change, our costs may also increase.  Similarly, if the contract time is reduced, 
charges will decrease accordingly.  We propose to re-evaluate this Work Estimate after the 
design is complete and the actual contract time is determined. 


 
As can be seen from the estimates, if the overall project is done as a single project, there will be 
a savings of $4,131 for the construction observation portion of the work associated with this 
project. 
 
 


   


 
 
 
 
 







 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 19 


CM Inspector Principal 
Engr. Admin


$130 $110 $175 $72


1a (700) Bid Support 2 16 4 22 $3,348 Bid advertisement / opening / review 


1b (700) Design Support During Construction 16 16 $2,800 Construction Questions


2 (700) Pre-Construction Meeting 4 4 4 1 13 $1,732 Agendas / conduct meeting


3 (700) Pre-conSite Visit & Documentation 4 12 16 $1,840 Job walk / photos


4 (700) Project Start-Up 5 10 4 19 $2,038 Assemble filing / CM program


5 (702) Daily Field Inspection 677 677 $74,470 Based on 130 working days


5a (702)         Overtime Inspection 0 $0 None anticipated


6 (702) Progress Meetings & Coordination 39 39 78 $9,360 Assumes 13 meetings


7 (704) Status Reports & Documentation 18 130 6 154 $17,072 Review of progress/documentation


7a  (704)         Reports 22 60 3 85 $9,676 Status / Monthly reports


7b (704)        Submittal Management 18 15 3 36 $4,206 Based on 12 Submittals


7c  (704)         Requests For Information 10 8 2 20 $2,324 Based on 6  RFI's


7d (704)         Change Order Management 10 12 2 24 $2,764 Based on 3 change orders 


8 (704) Construction Management 81 81 $10,530 Misc CM tasks


9 (704) Cost and Schedule Management 22 18 40 $4,840 Based on 7 monthly payments


10 (710) Public Relations / Notifications 40 32 72 $8,720 Notices / phone calls


11 (710) Conflict Resolution 0 $0 T&M as needed 


12 (710) Post Construction Meeting 6 10 16 $1,880 Walk through


13 (710) Project Closeout 40 12 8 60 $7,096 As-builts / files


Bid Advertisement Distribution $1,225 $1,225 Bid plan sets (30) & advertisement


Photographs & video $75 $75
Vehicle expenses $16,842 $16,842 1203 hours x $14/hr=$16,842.00


Total Hours 321 1,039 36 33 1,429


Project Total $41,730 $114,290 $6,300 $2,376 $18,142 $182,838


1
2
3


HOURS AND COST INFORMATION
Task No. 
(Coastland 


Code)
Task Information Total 


Costs Comments 


TASK INFORMATION BILLING INFORMATION


NOTES:
Based on an estimated 130 working days  (our work ing day estimate will be refined following completion of PS&E)


Based on an estimated number of RFI's, change orders and submittals shown above.
Based on full time inspection at 40 hours per week and part-time construction management of 12.5 hours a week.


Direct     
Costs


Total      
Hours


WORK ESTIMATE


MANAGEMENT & INSPECTION SERVICES
PROPOSAL FOR CONSTRUCTION Sweetwater Springs Water DistrictFY 2014 CIP (Old Monte Rio and Hidden 


Valley Roads)


 
 
 
 







 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 20 


CM Inspector
Principal 


Engr. Admin


$130 $110 $175 $72


1a (700) Bid Support 2 16 4 22 $3,348 Bid advertisement / opening / review 


1b (700) Design Support During Construction 8 8 $1,400 Construction Questions


2 (700) Pre-Construction Meeting 0 $0 Agendas / conduct meeting


3 (700) Pre-conSite Visit & Documentation 2 6 8 $920 Job walk / photos


4 (700) Project Start-Up 2 5 2 9 $954 Assemble filing / CM program


5 (702) Daily Field Inspection 312 312 $34,320 Based on 60 working days


5a (702)         Overtime Inspection 0 $0 None anticipated


6 (702) Progress Meetings & Coordination 18 18 36 $4,320 Assumes 6 meetings


7 (704) Status Reports & Documentation 8 60 3 71 $7,856 Review of progress/documentation


7a  (704)         Reports 10 28 1 39 $4,452 Status / Monthly reports


7b (704)        Submittal Management 8 8 1 17 $1,992 Based on 5 Submittals


7c  (704)         Requests For Information 4 4 1 9 $1,032 Based on 2 RFI's


7d (704)         Change Order Management 4 6 1 11 $1,252 Based on 1 change orders 


8 (704) Construction Management 37 37 $4,810 Misc CM tasks


9 (704) Cost and Schedule Management 10 8 18 $2,180 Based on 3 monthly payments


10 (710) Public Relations / Notifications 18 16 34 $4,100 Notices / phone calls


11 (710) Conflict Resolution 0 $0 T&M as needed 


12 (710) Post Construction Meeting 2 6 8 $920 Walk through


13 (710) Project Closeout 18 6 4 28 $3,288 As-builts / files


Bid Advertisement Distribution $355 $355 Bid plan sets (30) & advertisement


Photographs & video $35 $35
Vehicle expenses $7,770 $7,770 555 hours x $14/hr=$7,770


Total Hours 143 483 24 17 667
Project Total $18,590 $53,130 $4,200 $1,224 $8,160 $85,304


1
2
3


WORK ESTIMATE
FY 2014 CIP (Hidden Valley Road Only) PROPOSAL FOR CONSTRUCTION Sweetwater Springs Water DistrictMANAGEMENT & INSPECTION 


TASK INFORMATION BILLING INFORMATION HOURS AND COST INFORMATION
Task No. 


(Coastland Code) Task Information Direct    
Costs


Total    
Hours


Total 
Costs Comments 


NOTES:
Based on an estimated 60 working days  (our work ing day estimate will be refined following completion of PS&E)
Based on full time inspection at 40 hours per week and part-time construction management of 12.5 hours a week.
Based on an estimated number of RFI's, change orders and submittals shown above.  


 
 
 







 


   Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2014 Capital Improvement Projects  | 
 
 


PAGE 21 


CM Inspector
Principal 


Engr. Admin


$130 $110 $175 $72


1a (700) Bid Support 2 16 4 22 $3,348 Bid advertisement / opening / review 


1b (700) Design Support During Construction 10 10 $1,750 Construction Questions


2 (700) Pre-Construction Meeting 4 4 4 1 13 $1,732 Agendas / conduct meeting


3 (700) Pre-conSite Visit & Documentation 2 6 8 $920 Job walk / photos


4 (700) Project Start-Up 3 7 2 12 $1,304 Assemble filing / CM program


5 (702) Daily Field Inspection 366 366 $40,260 Based on 70 working days


5a (702)         Overtime Inspection 0 $0 None anticipated


6 (702) Progress Meetings & Coordination 21 21 42 $5,040 Assumes 7 meetings


7 (704) Status Reports & Documentation 10 70 3 83 $9,216 Review of progress/documentation


7a  (704)         Reports 12 32 2 46 $5,224 Status / Monthly reports


7b (704)        Submittal Management 10 8 2 20 $2,324 Based on 7 Submittals


7c  (704)         Requests For Information 6 4 1 11 $1,292 Based on 4 RFI's


7d (704)         Change Order Management 6 6 1 13 $1,512 Based on 2 change orders 


8 (704) Construction Management 44 44 $5,720 Misc CM tasks


9 (704) Cost and Schedule Management 12 10 22 $2,660 Based on 4 monthly payments


10 (710) Public Relations / Notifications 22 16 38 $4,620 Notices / phone calls


11 (710) Conflict Resolution 0 $0 T&M as needed 


12 (710) Post Construction Meeting 4 4 8 $960 Walk through


13 (710) Project Closeout 22 6 4 32 $3,808 As-builts / files


Bid Advertisement Distribution $835 $835 Bid plan sets (30) & advertisement


Photographs & video $40 $40
Vehicle expenses $9,100 $9,100 650 hours x $14/hr=$9,100


Total Hours 180 560 30 20 790
Project Total $23,400 $61,600 $5,250 $1,440 $9,975 $101,665


1
2
3


WORK ESTIMATE
FY 2014 CIP (Old Monte Rio Road Only) PROPOSAL FOR CONSTRUCTION Sweetwater Springs Water DistrictMANAGEMENT & INSPECTION 


TASK INFORMATION BILLING INFORMATION HOURS AND COST INFORMATION
Task No. 


(Coastland Code) Task Information Direct    
Costs


Total   
Hours


Total 
Costs Comments 


NOTES:
Based on an estimated 70 working days  (our work ing day estimate will be refined following completion of PS&E)
Based on full time inspection at 40 hours per week and part-time construction management of 12.5 hours a week.
Based on an estimated number of RFI's, change orders and submittals shown above.  


 
 





		Item V-A - Res 12-17, Contract with Coastland for 2014 CIP

		Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 



		Item V-A.1 - RES 12-17 Engineering Services for CIP 2014

		Item V-A.2 FY 2014 Capital Projects Coastland PROPOSAL










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 12-18, 
APPROVAL AN AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT BETWEEN THE BOARD OF 
ADMINISTRATION OF CALPERS AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTIONS OF THE 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT  
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 12-18 which approves an 
amendment to the contract between CalPERS and Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to add the provision of partial service retirement to the District’s 
retirement program with CalPERS. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
In discussions on my future employment with the District I have requested that the 
Board consider partial service retirement as an element of that future employment.  
Partial service retirement means that an employee can work less than full time, for 
example 70%, and collect the employee’s CalPERS retirement benefit for the remainder 
of the 100%, in this example, 30% of the retirement benefit.  To implement this 
provision the District needs to modify its contract with CalPERS.  CalPERS (and State 
law) requires specific steps be followed to modify agency contracts.  At the October 
Board meeting the Board approved Resolution 12-16, a resolution of intention to modify 
the contract which is the first step of the process.  Resolution 12-18 is the second step 
and upon approval District staff may apply to participate in the partial retirement 
program.    
 
As discussed at the last meeting, there is no cost to the District for implementing this 
contract modification and there will be cost savings if any employees opt to participate 
in the partial retirement program with the District’s permission.   In the example stated 
above with 70% of full time, if the District and General Manager were to take advantage 
of this contract modification with respect to the General Manager position at 70% of full 
time, the annual savings to the District would be approximately $46,000  through salary 
and retirement benefits cost reductions (based on the 2012 budget information).   
 

































		Item V-B - Res 12-18 CalPers Partial Retirement

		Item V-B.1 - RES 12-18, Authorizing an Amendment to the (PERS) Contract

		Item V-B.2 - Amendment to (PERS) Contract

		Item V-B.3 - Certification of Final Action of Government Body






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 (25%) 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 1st quarter actual revenues and expenses.  This 
comprises 25% of the year by time and so we compare the revenues and 
expenses to that standard. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
1Q Revenue is greater than 25% of budgeted amount.   
 
Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, came in 3% ahead of the 25% 
schedule.  Some acceleration is expected, as seasonal fluctuations typically 
render first quarter water sales higher than other quarters due to higher sales for 
outside watering and greater visitor activity during the warmer weather.  
However, this fiscal year the amount of water sold is greater than this same 
period last year by 15%, or about 8,400,788 more gallons of water sold.    
 
1Q Expenditures are higher than 25% of budgeted amount.  
 
1Q expenditures are 5% higher than budgeted.  This is expected, as certain 
District bills are paid in full at the beginning of the fiscal year, such as insurance, 
LAFCO fees, and water system fees.  Driving up expenses, however, were some 
fairly large unbudgeted expenses: $3,041 of unbudgeted generator maintenance 
expenses and $2,275 of unbudgeted emergency tree trimming.  Also of note, 
water system fees paid to the Department of Public Health increased by $6,590 
compared to this same period last year. 
 







Actual vs, Budgeted Thru September 30, 2012 2 
November 1, 2012 


For more detail on all the budget line items, please refer to the attached Actual 
vs. Budgeted breakdown provided with your packet. 
 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 1Q Capital Budget (Table 2) is not in balance because some revenues won’t 
come in until later in the year, because of carryover revenue and expenses from 
the prior year and loan repayment expenses that occurred in the quarter, and 
because the total cost of the 2014 CIP is included in the FY 2013 Budget but most 
of the expense won’t occur until FY 2014.   
 
Revenue from the annual assessment, Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) 
and transfers to in-house construction won’t be happening until later in the 
fiscal year.     There is more revenue from the CDC/RRROC grant for 2013 CIP 
– these revenues always lag the expenses.  The non-grant funded part of the 
2013 CIP will be funded from reserves.    
 
Major 1st Quarter expenses are for initial payments for GO Bonds, State 
Loans, and the Private Placement Loan, and for the 2013 CIP expenses for 
which is assisted by a 75% CDC/RRROC grant.   
  
 
FUNDS AT THE COUNTY AND AT REDWOOD CREDIT UNION 
 
Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 1st 
Quarter balances.  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 1st Quarter.  
Of note the CD at Redwood Credit Union expired in early October and those funds 
have been transferred into the CIRF.   
 
It is difficult to make much of the comparisons in Table 3 because this is just the 
1st quarter of the fiscal year.  There are many expenses not incurred or paid and 
many revenues not received.  The Budgeted CIRF shows the encumbrance for the 
2014 CIP but those funds will largely not be expended until FY 2014.  







FY 2012-13 
Actual


2012-13 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense  
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.1. 2· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 58,411 230,000 -171,589 25.4%  
4031.1 · Daily Water Sales Deposits 510,333 1,796,550 -1,286,217 28.41%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 568,745 2,026,550 -1,457,805 28.07% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 568,745 2,026,550 -1,457,805 28.07%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


4445 · Grant Proceeds 1,875 0 1,875 100.0%
In the 1Q, rec'd $1875 as final reimbursement for 
Neeley slide administrative costs  


1700 · Interest 10,133 35,000 -24,867 28.95% Reflects interest earnings thru 1Q *
3600 · Construction New Services 904 4,000 -3,096 22.6%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 402 2,000 -1,598 20.1%


4032 · Rent 17,129 81,000 -63,871 21.15%
 In the 1Q, the District agreed to waive past rent due 
from Crystal Communications as well as future rent 
through 2012 in exchange for providing a new radio 
system/radios.


*


4227 · SCWA reimbursement 0 8,000 -8,000 0.0%


Just before the 1Q, the District amended it's 
Agreement with SCWA.  In lieu of reimbursement, 
SCWA will administer the District's toilet install 
program for customers not on sewer.  Therefore, 
SCWA reimbursement will be reduced to the cost of 
dues - app. $2,500 for FY 2012-13.


*
4040 · Miscellaneous Income 84 3,000 -2,916 2.79%  


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 30,527 133,000 -102,473 22.95%


Total Income 599,271 2,159,550 -1,560,279 27.75%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages
195,937 755,736 -559,799 25.93%


 


5912 · Overtime 6,863 30,270 -23,407 22.67%   
5916 · On-Call Pay 7,735 33,090 -25,355 23.38%
5918 · Extra help - Contract 9,421 33,600 -24,179 28.04%  


Total Salary 219,955 852,696 -632,741 25.8%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monies pd -897 -897 100.0%
5920 · Retirement 27,604 119,521 -91,917 23.1%
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 2,984 14,420 -11,436 20.7%


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 32,634 133,702 -101,068 24.41%   
5931 · Retiree Health 672 2,760 -2,088 24.35%  


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 12,113 25,049 -12,936 48.36% In the 1Q, expenses reflect pymt through the 2Q, 
plus pymt for FY 2011-12 Audit *


Total Benefits 75,109 295,452 -220,343 25.42%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 295,065 1,148,148 -853,083 25.7%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2012-13 Operating Budget Variances as of September 30, 2012 (25%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 4







FY 2012-13 
Actual


2012-13 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2012-13 Operating Budget Variances as of September 30, 2012 (25%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Communications
6040-I · Internet service 406 1,800 -1,394 22.56%
6040-C · Cell Phones 759 2,720 -1,961 27.9%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 178 850 -673 20.88%


6040-S · SCADA software maint. 0 0 0 0.0%  
6040-T · Telephones 5,361 15,400 -10,039 34.81%


Total Communications 6,704 20,770 -14,066 32.28%


Insurances
6101 · Gen. Liability 20,711 28,000 -7,289 73.97%  
6102 · Auto/Equipment 13,932 8,000 5,932 174.15%  


Total Insurances 34,643 36,000 -1,357 96.23%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles
6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 1,540 16,000 -14,460 9.63%  


6151 · Office Maintenance 1,486 5,000 -3,514 29.73%  


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 3,026 21,000 -17,974 14.41%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 1,325 5,200 -3,875 25.48%


6100 · SCADA system 0 2,780 -2,780 0.0%  


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 25,877 45,000 -19,123 57.51%  


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 20,781 40,000 -19,219 51.95%  


6143 · Generator Maintenance 3,041 0 3,041 100.0%
In the 1Q this line item is already overbudget 
because nothing was budgeted for Generator 
Maintenance in FY 2012-13. *


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 51,025 92,980 -41,955 54.88%


Miscellaneous Expenses
6280 · Memberships 713 8,700 -7,987 8.2%  


6303 · Claims
360 1,500 -1,140 24.0%


  
6593 · Governmental Fees 19,632 19,500 132 100.68%


1Q expense includes water system fees, paid twice 
yearly, and annual LAFCO costs.  *


Total Miscellaneous Expenses 20,705 29,700 -8,995 69.71%


Office Expense


6410 · Postage
3,286 16,000 -12,714 20.54%


  
6430 · Printing Expense 1,140 6,400 -5,260 17.81%  


6461 · Office Supplies 1,836 4,000 -2,164 45.89%
In the 1Q, the District spent approx. $600 on new 
meter book covers, an unbudgeted expenses. *


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 424 820 -396 51.74%


6890 · Computers/Software 0 1,600 -1,600 0.0%
  


6579 · Furniture 0 500 -500 0.0%
Total Office Expense 6,686 29,320 -22,634 22.8%


Operating Supplies


6300 · Chemicals 0 17,000 -17,000 0.0%
 


 Page 2 of 4







FY 2012-13 
Actual


2012-13 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2012-13 Operating Budget Variances as of September 30, 2012 (25%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6880 · Tools and Equipment
2,144 5,000 -2,856 42.88%


  
6881 · Safety Equipment 0 1,500 -1,500 0.0%


Total Operating Supplies 2,144 23,500 -21,356 9.12%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 799 3,400 -2,601 23.49%  
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 1,936 13,000 -11,064 14.9%  


6570 · Consultant Fees 1,833 1,300 533 141.03%   
6590 · Engineering 0 4,000 -4,000 0.0%  


6610 · Legal 6,538 20,000 -13,462 32.69%  


6630 · Audit/Accounting 9,275 27,500 -18,225 33.73%
1Q expenses include a $4,500 payment for annual 
audit services *


Total Professional Services 20,381 69,200 -48,819 29.45%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 336 3,400 -3,064 9.88%  


6840 · Building & Warehouse 9,000 27,000 -18,000 33.33% 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October. *
Total Rents & Leases 9,336 30,400 -21,064 30.71%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 250 4,000 -3,750 6.25%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 7,828 26,500 -18,672 29.54%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 1,486 6,400 -4,914 23.21%  


Total Transportation & Travel 9,564 36,900 -27,336 25.92%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 205 1,500 -1,295 13.67%
6021.3 · T-shirts 504 1,200 -696 41.97% T-shirts are purchased once yearly


6021.4 · Jackets 0 360 -360 0.0%  


Total Uniforms 709 3,060 -2,351 23.16%


Utilities
7320 · Electricity 32,400 90,000 -57,600 36.0%  


7321 · Propane 10 3,100 -3,090 0.32%  
Total Utilities 32,410 93,100 -60,690 34.81%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 197,332 485,930 -288,598 40.61%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 492,397 1,634,078 -1,141,681 30.13%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 2,275 15,000 -12,725 15.17% In the 1Q, $2,275 was paid for unbudgeted tree 
removal. *


8517 · Field/office equipment 0 5,000 -5,000 0.0%  


8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 0.0%  


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 2,275 20,000 -17,725 11.38%


Total Expense 494,672 1,654,078 -1,159,406 29.91%


Net Ordinary Income 104,600 505,472 -400,872 20.69%


 Page 3 of 4







FY 2012-13 
Actual


2012-13 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 
the Year


% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect changes 
since last report)


*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2012-13 Operating Budget Variances as of September 30, 2012 (25%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 0 230,000 -230,000 0.0%


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF
0 220,000 -220,000 0.0%


  
8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 0 15,000 -15,000 0.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 0 25,000 -25,000 0.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 0 490,000 -490,000 0.0%


 Page 4 of 4







 Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2012-13 Capital Program Budget Variances as of September 30, 2012 (25%)


FY 12-13
ACTUAL 


(1Q)
FY 12-13
BUDGET


$ Over 
Budget for 


Year
% of 


Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 13,715 27,000 -13,285 50.8%
Annual Assessment (County) 2,376 710,000 -707,624 0.3%
Prior Year Assessment 0 40,000 -40,000 0.0%
Capital Debt Reduction Charge 0 230,000 -230,000 0.0%
Interest 6,167 25,000 -18,833 24.7%
CDC Grants, 2012 CIP  0


99,368 914,250 -814,882 10.9%
Transfers to CIRF from Operations  220,000


 25,000


TOTAL REVENUE 121,626 2,191,250 -2,069,624 5.6%


EXPENSES   


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 460,053 687,000 -226,947 67.0% 1st Payment made
State Loan Payments 85,086 170,300 -85,214 50.0% 1st Payment made
Private Placement Loan 117,006 234,014 -117,008 50.0% 1st Payment made


CIP IV-B, Project 2 780 -                 780 #DIV/0! Continuing expenses due to Rio Vista Terrace


2013 CIP Carryover 127,280 1,219,000 -1,091,720 10.4% Construction started in July 2012


2014 CIP 0 1,592,000 -1,592,000 0.0%
Anticipated design costs, construction contract 
award in June 2013


In-House Construction Projects 3,401 25,000 -21,599 13.6%


TOTAL EXPENSES 793,606 3,927,314 -3,133,708 20.2%


SURPLUS/DEFICIT -671,979  -1,736,064 1,064,085 38.7%


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations


CDC Grants, 2013 CIP







Table 3.  FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (1Q)
FY 12-13


12-13 Budget
Difference 


Actual-FY13 Actual 1Q


DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 
District Policy Reserves


Operating Balance 200,000 200,000 -              
Budget Reserve (10% of Operating Exp) 163,708 163,708 -              
Economic Reserve (15% of Operating Exp) 245,562 245,562 -              
Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt) 272,829 272,829 -              
Capital Reserve 250,000 250,000 -              


Total District Policy 1,132,099 1,132,099 -              
TOTAL Reserves EOY 3,723,088 3,018,140 704,949     


Reserves Above (below) Policy 2,590,989 1,886,041 704,949


DISTRICT FUNDS
CIRF 2,130,935  1,463,507 667,428
OPERATING RESERVE 396,970     409,270   -12,300
OPERATIONS 292,161     200,000   92,161
CD 672,925     696,756   -23,830
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 109,246     102,757   6,489
BUILDING 120,850     145,850   -25,000


Total Funds Available 3,723,088 3,018,140







Comments


Difference between Total 
and Policy Reserves







 


County Balances FY 2012-13
(from "Trial Balance by Project" Report (FAMIS 017))


$246,433.92 $120,850.00 $396,970.00 $3,794.28 $112,980.07 $0.00 $3,143,483.47 $ 1,411.07 $24,750.00 $1,932.94 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,199,225.61


 (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)  (Restricted)


NAME


CD at 
Redwood 


Cred U


Operations Bldg Fund Reserves Federal Loan In-house 
Construction


Federal 
Construction


Capital 
Improvement 


Revenue


State Loan 
#58330


State Loan 
#58830 
Reserve


State Loan 
58340


State Loan 
58340 Reserve


Private 
Placement 
Funding


INDEX 776013 776021 776039 776203 776211 776302 776401 776500 776518 776609 776617 776708


PROJECT 001 002 003 200 210 300 400 500 510 600 610 700


FP1-Jul 664,620.62 $246,433.92 $120,850.00 $396,970.00 $3,794.28 $112,647.70 $0.00 $3,003,948.42 $1,411.07 $24,750.00 $1,932.94 $146,619.86 $0.00 $4,059,358.19


FP2-Aug 664,620.62 $241,761.12 $120,850.00 $396,970.00 $229,311.60 $111,363.01 $0.00 $2,158,300.66 $24,961.07 $24,750.00 $148,552.94 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,603,440.26


FP3-Sept 672,925.48 $292,161.12 $120,850.00 $396,970.00 $229,311.60 $109,246.26 $0.00 $2,130,935.38 $13,184.10 $24,750.00 $75,243.93 $146,619.86 $0.00 $3,539,272.25


FP4-Oct $0.00


FP5-Nov $0.00


FP6-Dec $0.00


FP7-Jan $0.00


FP8-Feb $0.00


FP9-Mar $0.00


FP10-Apr $0.00


FP11-May $0.00


FP12-Jun $0.00


FP 13 
(FINAL)


$0.00


            
Balance does not 


reflect June 
construction checks


$0.00


Beginning balances per FAMIS:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from GL101 until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as "Vendors Payable")


 





		Item V-C Actual v Budgeted - 1Q 2012-13

		Item V-C.1 - Budget variances as of 09-30-2012 (25%)

		Sheet1 (2)



		Item V-C.2 - Capital Budget variances as of 09-30-2012 (25%)

		Table 2. FY12Q4



		Item V-C.3 - Fund and Loan Balances as of 09-30-2012 (25%)

		Table 3



		Item V-C.4 - County Acctg Indices FY 12-13

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DISTRICT INVESTMENT ALTERNATIVES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and give staff direction on investment of 
District funds. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  small, as discussed below.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the last meeting the Board discussed options regarding the Redwood Credit Union 
Certificate of Deposit (CD) that expired early in October.  The Board directed me to 
investigate other investment options available to the District prior to making a decision 
on reinvesting into any CD.  As a reminder, the value of the CD when it expired was 
approximately $672,925.  The interest rate of this CD had been 5% annually.  The 
renewal rate is 1.25%.  The funds from this CD were deposited into the County of 
Sonoma Pooled Investment Program on October 8, 2012. 
 
Following the meeting I went online to investigate Sonoma County credit union CDs.  
What I found included the following:   
 


• Redwood Credit Union – 1.25%, 5 years 
• Community First CU - 0.6%, 3 years 
• Patelco FCU - 2.0%, 7 years (may be ending October 31) and I don’t know 


anything about eligibility requirements 
• Sonoma FCU - 0.75%, 5 years 
• Sonoma County Grange CU - 0.5%, 3 years (don’t think we are eligible for 


membership) 
 
The County of Sonoma Pooled Investment Program (PIP) recently made their quarterly 
report available.  Their interest earnings of present investments is 0.818% after 
expenses.  Their report shows a comparison to the investment returns of the Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which is another very safe investment option available 
to the District, and currently is below 0.5%.     
 







District Investment Alternatives   2  
November 1, 2012 


Staff is of the opinion that keeping the District’s funds in the PIP is the best investment 
approach for right now.  The PIP (or LAIF, but LAIF has much lower current yield) has 
the advantage of flexibility.  The higher interest rates of the various CD’s (only Redwood 
CU has a higher yield for five years or less), are not substantial enough to warrant 
locking those funds into any CD (the annual difference between $250,000 at 1.25% and 
0.8% is $1,125).  Interest rates are at historic lows; how long can we expect these 
rates to continue?  Locking in the funds into a 5 year CD means we think rates will stay 
at these levels for that long.  Staff is hesitant to make that commitment.   
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Sukey Robb-Wilder, President 
 


 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE PROGRESS REPORT OF THE AD HOC GOALS 
AND OBJECTIVES FORMATTING COMMITTEE 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive an update from the ad hoc Committee on Goals and 
Objectives. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder and Victoria Wikle are reviewing the District Goals and Objectives. 
The document was first drafted in 2007 and has been reviewed annually since then.    
Sukey and Victoria have met with General Manager Steve Mack in October and will have a 
report on their progress at the November meeting.   








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DISTRICT’S EMERGENCY PEPAREDNESS, 
RESPONSE AND RECOVERY PLAN / PARTICIPATION IN DISASTER 
PREPAREDNESS EXERCISES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and give staff direction the District’s 
Emergency Preparedness, Response and Recovery Plan (Emergency Response 
Plan) and participation in regional exercises. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none expected.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has an Emergency Response Plan, it gets reviewed on an annual or more 
frequent basis, and it is an essential element of District operations.  Emergencies 
happen all the time and District staff need to be prepared for every potential disaster.  
Having a response plan is an essential element of disaster preparedness.  Moreover, the 
District’s Emergency Response Plan is required by the Department of Public Health – the 
value of emergency plans is well recognized.  An outline of the District’s plan is attached 
as Exhibit A.  
 
District staff have experience in disaster response.  Floods are relatively common in the 
District’s service area, so there is a constant need to be ready and staff (with the 
exception of the General Manager) have had local disaster experience in dealing with 
flooding situations.   
 
Water supply in all emergencies is a critical need; District staff’s first responsibility will 
be maintaining that supply.   In larger, more diverse organizations, employees may 
have disaster responsibilities that are much different than their normal jobs – that’s not 
likely for District staff.  We will be maintaining the water supply.   
 
Exhibit B is the General Emergency Plan.  This is the general approach to emergencies 
and focuses on the District’s responsibility to keep the systems going and to provide 
potable water to the communities affected.  The Emergency Response Plan contains 
more information on details of the general plan, contact lists, and modifications for 
specific emergencies such as fire, flood and earthquake.   







Emergency Response Plan   2  
November 1, 2012 


 
In our past couple meetings, the Board of Directors have had questions about the 
District’s contacts and role with the County of Sonoma emergency response effort and 
exercises.  On October 18, the State of California held an exercise called the Great 
Shakeout which was designed to raise awareness of preparedness for earthquakes and 
have some level of exercise of emergency responders’ communications.  The District did 
not directly participate in the exercise but was notified by email by both the County of 
Sonoma Emergency Management Division and the California Department of Public 
Health (DPH) that the exercise was happening.  In the DPH email, we were requested to 
respond that the message was received, which we did (we got two emails on the same 
subject; I informed them of that in my one response).  I emailed Zachary Hamill, 
Director of the Count of Sonoma Division of Emergency Management, thanking him for 
the notification and giving him some information on our responsibilities.   
 
The District has an active emergency response program.  The Emergency Response Plan 
is relevant to possible emergencies and gets updated on at least an annual basis.  The 
District is plugged into the County emergency response network and will provide an 
appropriate response to whatever emergency or disaster occurs.   
    







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN 
 
Section No. 1 – Administrative 
 Preface 
 Points and Authorities 
 Mutual Aid Agreements 
  Resolution Adopting SEMS 
  WARN – Water Agency Response Network 
 
Section No. 2 – District Chain of Command 
 
Section No. 3 – Phone Lists 
 SSWD Staff and Responsibilities during an Emergency 
 Official Water System Quality Contacts 
 Emergency Services Providers 
 Automated Telephone Notification 
 Water System Technical Support Contacts 
 Utility and Supply Providers 
 Communications Service Providers 
 Lock Combinations 
 Media Contacts 
 Purchased Water Suppliers 
 Other Water Agencies 
 Board of Directors and Professional Staff 
 Official Posting Locations 
 
Section No. 4 – General Emergency Plan 
 Plan 
 Contact List 
 
Section No. 5 – Water Quality Notification Plan – Guerneville 
 
Section No. 6 – Water Quality Notification Plan – Monte Rio 
 
Section No. 7 – Boil Water Orders 
 Boil Water Order 
 Cancellation of Boil Water Order 
 Unsafe Water Alert 
 Cancellation of Unsafe Water Alert 
 
Section No. 8 – El Bonita Power Outage Procedures 
 Emergency Generator During Power Outage 







 General Procedures 
 Generator Log and Checklist 
 
Section No. 9 – Monte Rio Power Outage Procedures 
 Emergency Generator During Power Outage 
 General Procedures 
 
Section No. 10 – Fire Emergency Plan 
 
Section No. 11 – Earthquake Emergency Plan 
 
Section No. 12 – Flood Emergency Plan 
 Well Field Flooding or High Turbidity Level 
 General Procedures 
 Power Outage Procedures 
 CT Compliance Charts 







Exhibit B.  General Emergency Plan  
 
 
A. The normal notification of an emergency situation with the water quality will be from one 


of the following agencies. 
 


1. Regional Water Quality Board. 
2. California Department of Public Health (CDPH). 
3. County Health Department. 


 
B. If employees of the Sweetwater Springs Water District discover a source of possible 


contamination that affects any waterway, we are to notify the California Department of 
Public Health (CDPH), and the Water Quality Control Board (WQCB) at the following: 


 
707-576-2145   CDPH General Office  WQCB 707-576-2220 
707-576-2722   CDPH Fax 


 
After normal business hours contact CDPH personnel.  
(See WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN) 


 
C. Determine the nature and extent of the emergency. 
 


1. It is paramount to determine the potential of a health hazard after/during an 
emergency.  If public health is jeopardized or the system is unable to meet 
applicable regulations, laws, or standards, CDPH must be contacted. 


 
2. Within as short a time as possible contact all personnel to determine their personal 


conditions, whether they are affected by the emergency, and if they are available 
for work. 


 
3. The Field Manager and General Manager will coordinate all outside District 


employees and materials on loan, and the areas of assistance necessary. 
 


a. The Field Manager will collect and prioritize incoming information and 
inform General Manager. 


 
b. Appoint people to assess site damages, necessary repairs, and needs, such as 


power. 
 


c. TAG SHEETS will be used to document ALL EVENTS, Make sure to record 
Times. 


 
(1).  Damage Assessments 
(2). Health Hazards 
(3). Repairs/Equipment Needed 
(4). Repairs Completed 


 
 
 







d. As quickly as possible start gathering information for a public information 
release.  If applicable, this information should address the location of 
potable water, emergency measures necessary, the type and duration of 
the emergency. 


 
(1) The senior account clerk will notify appropriate radio and television 


stations as well as local and area newspapers. 
 
(2) Clerical staff should be utilized on our phones as much as possible 


for continuity of information. 
 
(3) If it is possible to keep water in our tanks, have water truck running 


to keep the tanks with water and have CONSERVE WATER 
NOTICES put out throughout the town and at radio and TV stations.  
The Administrative Manager or General Manager will contact potable 
water vendors concerning the stationing of water trucks for potable 
drinking water.  Locations will be at: 


 
(a) Safeway parking lot 
(b) Wastewater Plant at end of Neeley Rd. 
(c) Rio Nido Fire House 
(d) Monte Rio Fire House 
(e) E Street in Monte Rio across from Fern’s 


 
(e) The Field Manager and/or General Manager will gather information on 


damages and needs.   
 


(1) Prioritize damages. 
 


(a) Is it necessary to call in outside contractors to repair 
damages? 


(b) Is it necessary to call in manpower from outside our District? 
(c) Is it necessary to implement a Boil Water Order or Unsafe 


Water Alert to insure the safety of our customers?  The 
District has a list of restaurants, food establishments and 
businesses that we contact in an emergency situation. 


 
(i) The General Manager/Field Manager, along with 


CDPH will make that determination 
(ii) Contact CDPH at 707-576-2145 concerning the 


implementation of the Boil Water Order. 
 
 (2) Prioritize needs.  Field Manager and/or General Manager). 


 
 
The District has a 225kw generator for the El Bonita Pumping Station.  It is started on a monthly 
basis and runs the wells for a 4-hour period each month.  This generator is located on Old River 
Rd. where it can be connected to run the pumping station out of flood waters.   
 
At the Monte Rio Treatment Plant resides a 200kw generator that is operated in the same 
manner. 







 
(a) What supplies are necessary to continue operations? 


 
(1) Generators for water production sites 
(2) Chemicals for water disinfection 
(3) Liquid Chlorine 
(4) Chemical feed equipment 
(5) Repair equipment 


 
D. Determine effect of exposure on our water system. (Field Manager, General Manager 


and Engineers) 
 


1. Is there a long-term effect to our system?  What is the short-term effect on our 
system?   
 
CDPH personnel will be able to assist in this determination. 


 
(a) If necessary, contact the Water Quality Control Board and the California 


Department of Public Health. 
 


2. Possible alternative methods of continued service. 
   


Field Manager will determine the requirements for continued operation at present 
location. 
 
(a) Additional testing required to monitor situation. 
(b) Additional treatment required. 
(c) Requirements and parameters of continued operations as required by 


CDPH and District operations. 
(d) Run stand by generators if power is lost, as well as calling in water trucks 


as needed. 
 
E. Procedures to complete prior to a declared emergency, or after an unannounced natural 


emergency. 
 


1. Notification of CDPH at the following phone number:  
707-576-2145 Fax 707-576-2722. 


 
After normal business hours, CDPH personnel should be contacted  
(See WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN) 
 
(a) Type of emergency 
(b) Duration of emergency 
(c) Possible impact of emergency on local operations 
(d) Any possible requirements from CDPH 
(e) Available manpower 
(f) Chain of Command 


 
(i) General Manager 
(ii) Field Manager 
(iii) Administrative Manager 







 
 
2. Notification of Local Fire Departments: 


 
Guerneville Fire Department 707-869-9089 
Monte Rio Fire Department 707-865-2067 


 
(a) Type of Emergency 
(b) Duration of Emergency 
(c) Possible impact of emergency on local operations in regards to fire 


protection 
 
F. Short term exposure. (Less than 12 hours) 
 


1. Estimate daily water use from production reports (Field Manager) 
 


(a) If it is necessary to shut down water production sites, determine if it will be 
necessary to notify the public and the Fire Departments to conserve water 
use, and for how long. 


 
2. Administrative Manager will contact radio, and television stations covering the 


area, with specific information concerning the emergency, and what actions, if any, 
should be taken by our customers. 


 
3. The Field Manager or Lead Person will determine if we can have water trucks fill 


storage tanks as needed, and have water conservation put into effect.  
Administrative or Field Manager will notify potable water providers concerning the 
stationing of water trucks for potable drinking water. 


 
4. The stand-by generators will be started if power is off. 
 
5. The General Manager, Field Manager, or Administrative Manager will contact the 


Office of Emergency Services concerning the possible use of their equipment. 
 
G. Long term exposure.  (Longer than 12 hours) 
 


1. If the exposure is determined to be long term and the possible dewatering of the 
system is a potential these immediate actions should be taken. 


 
(a) Notification by General Manager, or Field Manager to CDPH local office of 


existing problem and all pertinent information. 
 
(b) Notification of the public of the problem (via written notice, radio, television 


and/or local newspapers) by General Manager or Administrative Manager, 
requesting conservation of existing supply, and a boil water request for 
safety.  Notices will be posted in all areas of the District on telephone poles 
and at Post Offices, Fire Stations and at all tanker truck locations.   (See 
WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN)  


 







(c) As system begins to be dewatered, booster pump stations will be shut down 
by direction of the Field Manager or other Crew Supervisors to prevent 
damage of a pumping station. 


 
2. Restoration of water to a dewatered system. 


 
(a) Chlorination into dewatered system areas will be set by CDPH. 
 
(b) Hydrants in the areas where water is being reintroduced shall be opened, 


by operators to vent air and rid the mains of as much dirty water as 
possible.  Chlorine residuals should also  be taken from these hydrants and 
recorded. 


 
(c) Bacteriological samples shall be taken from all zones on a continuous basis 


till the samples come back safe.  Samples will be done in accordance with 
The Safe Drinking Water Act.  Turbidity tests shall be taken with the BT 
samples.  (Membrane Bacteriological samples with a 24 hour turn around 
time is preferred). 


 
(d) It will be necessary to supply information to the public as to time frames for 


service restoration and precautions to be taken in regards to water 
use/consumption. 


 
Follow procedures in WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN. 


 
Locations in Town for Public Notices 
 


The District has a list of restaurants, food establishments and businesses 
that are contacted in an emergency situation as well as contacting Face to 
Face and West County Community Services.  (See Call List) 


 
Monte Rio Post Office 
Guerneville Post Office 
Rio Nido Bulletin Board 
Guerneville Visitors Center 
Guerneville Library 
Monte Rio School 
Russian River Chamber of Commerce 
Safeway 


 
Schools, Hand-Out Notices 
 


Guerneville Elementary   707-869-2864 
Monte Rio Elementary   707-865-2266 
El Molino High School   707-887-2271 


 
Signs/Banners (Where appropriate) 


 
Available Field personnel will be utilized to hand out notices. Boil Water 
Notices and/or Unsafe Water Notices will be kept on hand.  Estimated time 







to customize notices for detail purposes, and ready to deliver – 15 minutes 
during normal business hours. 


 
 
 


H. Official agencies, information sources, and reporting agencies.   
 
1. California Dep’t of Public Health    707-576-2145   


      707-576-2722 Fax  
 
After Hours (See WATER QUALITY EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION PLAN)  


 
I. Private agencies, information sources, and supply vendors.   


(See External Contact List.) 
 





		Item V-F- District Emergency Respose Plan-Participation in Regional Exercises

		Item V-F.1 Ex A District Emergency Respose Plan Index

		Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District

		Emergency Response Plan



		Item V-F.2- Ex B Emergency Respose Plan-General Plan






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-G 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: November 1, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RIO VISTA TERRACE SADDLE FAILURES 
RESOLUTION  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on progress resolving the Rio Vista 
Terrace service connection saddle failures.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
W.R. Forde replaced 18 saddles during the week of July 30.  All saddles associated with 
this project have been replaced in an acceptable manner.  As reported at the October  
and November meetings the only outstanding issue is payment for the investigation 
done June 20-22 ($18,700).  We recently received a response from Travelers Insurance, 
the project surety that asked questions about the expenses associated with the 
investigation.  I am in process of submitting more information about the expenses and 
will report on this matter at the Board Meeting.     
 
 





		Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-H  
 
FROM: David Warner, District Counsel 
 


Meeting Date: November 1, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION APPROVING THIRD AMENDMENT TO 
GENERAL MANAGER'S EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION: After discussions/direction in closed session consider 
adopting Resolution 12-19, approving a Third Amendment to the At-Will 
Employment Agreement with Stephen F. Mack and Authorizing the Board 
President to Execute Said Amendment. 


.  
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  to be determined.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


Steve Mack was hired as General Manager of the District as of September 2, 
2008.  The terms and conditions of employment are described in an At-Will 
Employment Agreement (“Original Agreement”), dated September 2, 2008.   At 
the October 1, 2009 meeting the Board approved the First Amendment to the 
Original Agreement.  There was no amendment to the contract in 2010.  On 
November 3, 2011, the Board approved the Second Amendment to the Original 
Agreement.  The Board will be having a closed session on negotiations for a Third 
Amendment at the November 1 meeting.  If agreement is reached on the Third 
Amendment, this amendment can be approved in open session by adopting 
Resolution 12-19.   
 







Resolution No. 12-19 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER  
DISTRICT APPROVING A THIRD AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH STEPHEN F. 


MACK, AND AUTHORIZING THE BOARD PRESIDENT TO EXECUTE SAID THIRD AMENDMENT  
 


WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District ("District") entered into an At-Will 
Employment Agreement on or about September 2, 2008 ("Original Agreement") with Stephen F. 
Mack ("Mack") to serve as General Manager of the District; and 


 
WHEREAS, the District approved a First Amendment to the Original Agreement on or 


about October 1, 2009, and a Second Amendment on November 3, 2011, that incorporated 
certain changes to the Original Agreement; and 
 


WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District recently evaluated Mack's performance 
as General Manager and has determined that Mack's performance has been satisfactory and he 
has made significant contributions to the District while serving as General Manager; and 


 
WHEREAS, Mack has requested a third amendment to the Original Agreement in 


recognition of his contributions to the District, all as described in the terms of the Third 
Amendment to At-Will Employment Agreement ("Third Amendment") attached hereto as Exhibit 
A; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to amend the Original Agreement in the 


manner described herein and as further described in the Third Amendment. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District, Sonoma County, California, that: 
 


1. The Third Amendment to the Original Agreement is approved (Exhibit A). 
 
2. All other terms of the Original Agreement and First and Second Amendments 


remain in effect, except as otherwise set forth in the Third Amendment.  
 


3. The Board President is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Third 
Amendment on behalf of the District. 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on November 1, 2012, by the 
following vote: 
 







Resolution 12-19  2 
November 1, 2012 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Gaylord Schaap       
Richard Holmer       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 





		Item V-H - Third Amendment to GM Contract

		Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 



		Item V-H.1 Resolution 12-19 - Third Amendment to GM Contract






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-I  
 
FROM: David Warner, District General Counsel 
 


Meeting Date: November 1, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  Adopt Resolution 12-20 Approving Agreement and Grant of 
Easement with F. Korbel & Bros., Inc. and Accepting Said Grant of 
Easement  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation on a proposed Agreement 
and Grant of Easement (“Easement Agreement”) from F. Korbel & Bros., Inc. 
(“Korbel”) that provides access from River Road across Korbel property to 
District-owned property commonly identified as Assessor’s Parcel No. 070-350-
008 (“Parcel 8”), and adopt Resolution 12-20 which approves the Easement 
Agreement and accepts the grant of easement contained therein, and authorizes 
the General Manager to sign all documents and do all things reasonably 
necessary to finalize the agreement.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has been made a party to litigation involving several property 
owners, including Korbel, and various claims relating to access from River Road 
across property owned by Korbel.  One of the parties, John Berry and Maureen 
Berry (collectively, “Berry”), named the District as a defendant in the underlying 
litigation.  The District Board previously authorized the District General Manager 
to enter into a settlement agreement with Berry on behalf of the District.  That 
settlement agreement has now been executed and the District has been 
dismissed from the Berry lawsuit.   
 
Subsequently, Berry entered into a settlement agreement with Korbel, the terms 
of which included a grant of easement by Korbel in favor of Berry that gives 
Berry a right of access over a portion of Korbel’s property that extends from 
River Road to a point where Parcel 8 abuts Korbel’s property.  When Korbel 
granted an access easement to Berry, Berry dismissed the remainder of their 
lawsuit.  (Note:  There still remains a lawsuit in which Korbel and another 
property owner, Jacobsen, have claims against each other, but that lawsuit does 
not involve the District.)   
 
Now that Korbel has settled the litigation as to Berry, and in order to avoid 
future litigation regarding rights of access over its property, Korbel has offered 
to grant the District an access easement using the same route and alignment 
that has already been granted to Berry.     







RESOLUTION APPROVING AGREEMENT AND GRANT OF EASEMENT       2  
November 1, 2012 
 


 


 
The basic terms of the proposed Easement Agreement are summarized in 
Exhibit 2, which is labeled “Summary of Easement Agreement” and a copy of the 
Easement Agreement is attached as Exhibit 3.   While the right to use the 
easement is created when the grant of easement is accepted by the District, the 
obligations contained in the attached summary table are triggered only if the 
District elects to use the easement.  If the District does not use the easement, 
the obligations do not materialize.   
 
While the Board has previously been advised by staff that the District does not 
need access over the Korbel property, there is no cost to the District in obtaining 
such access through the Easement Agreement, unless and until the District 
elects to use the rights of access granted in the easement.  In accepting the 
proposed grant of easement, the District will acquire access rights across 
Korbel’s property as outlined in Exhibit 3, following page 17 and labeled “Exhibit 
Map”, and which provides an access route from River Road to Parcel 8. 
 
Staff and District general counsel recommend that the Board adopt Resolution 
12-20 which approves the Easement Agreement, accepts the grant of an access 
easement and authorizes the General Manager to sign all documents and do all 
things reasonably necessary to finalize the agreement. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Exhibit 1 – Resolution 12-20 
Exhibit 2 – Summary of Easement Agreement 
Exhibit 3 – Agreement and Grant of Easement (draft) 
 
 







 RESOLUTION NO. 12-20 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OHE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT APPROVING AN AGREEMENT AND GRANT OF 
EASEMENT WITH F. KORBEL & SONS, INC., AND ACCEPTING SAID 
GRANT OF EASEMENT  


 
WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District ("District") was named as a 
defendant (and cross-defendant) in litigation (“the Lawsuit”) involving 
several property owners, including F. Korbel & Sons, Inc. (“Korbel”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lawsuit relates to claims by various private parties that 
allege rights of access from River Road across property owned by Korbel to 
several parcels of private property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District Board has previously approved the terms of a 
settlement agreement with one of the parties in the Lawsuit, John Berry and 
Maureen Berry (collectively, “Berry”); and  
 
WHEREAS, the settlement agreement with Berry has now been executed and 
the District has been dismissed from the Lawsuit by Berry; and   
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the settlement between Berry and the District, 
Berry entered into a settlement agreement with Korbel, whereby Korbel 
granted an access easement to Berry over a portion of Korbel’s property that 
extends from River Road to a point where Korbel’s property abuts a parcel 
owned by the District (“Parcel 8”); and  
 
WHEREAS, as a result of the settlements with the District and Korbel, Berry 
has dismissed all of the parties that Berry had named as defendants in the 
Lawsuit; and   
 
WHEREAS, after settling its dispute with Berry, and in order to avoid future 
litigation regarding rights of access over its property, Korbel has offered to 
grant the District an access easement using the same route and alignment 
that Korbel has already been granted to Berry; and 
 
WHEREAS, the terms and conditions of the offer from Korbel are set forth in 
a proposed Agreement and Grant of Easement (“the Agreement”) that is 
attached to the staff report for this item; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is no cost to the District in obtaining an access easement, 
unless and until the District elects to use the rights of access that are being 
granted by Korbel; and  
 
WHEREAS, in accepting the proposed easement, the District will acquire 
access rights across Korbel’s property from River Road to Parcel 8; and 
 







WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors has determined that it is in the 
best interests of the District to approve the terms of the Agreement, and 
accept the easement granted therein;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors hereby 
approves the Agreement, substantially in a form attached to the staff report 
for this item.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors hereby accepts the 
grant of easement contained in the Agreement and authorizes the General 
Manager to sign all documents on behalf of the District and to do all things 
reasonably necessary to finalize the Agreement. 
 
      I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors 
of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, 
California, at a meeting held on November 1, 2012, by the following vote: 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Rich Holmer        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


���������  







Exhibit 2 
 


Summary of Easement Agreement 
 
1.  Korbel grants a non-exclusive, 20-foot wide easement to SSWD for roadway, utility and access 
purposes (or the minimum width required for permitting purposes if less than 20-feet).  Neither party 
has an obligation to survey or prepare a legal description of the easement area, unless a legal 
description becomes necessary for SSWD’s use of the easement, in which case SSWD is responsible 
for surveying and preparing a legal description of the easement area.  If another party (e.g., Berry) 
prepares a legal description of the easement area, then that legal description will be applicable here. 


2.  Easement is for non-commercial purposes (harvesting of timber for residential structures to be 
constructed on SSWD is not considered a “commercial purpose”).  Use is limited to vehicular, non-
vehicular and pedestrian traffic by “property owners” and easement holders.  Parking on the easement 
is not permitted without the consent of Korbel 


3.  Easement allows for placement of “public utilities” (i.e., water, sewer, electricity, storm water 
facilities) within the boundaries of the easement, but does allow for cell towers or solar panels within 
the boundaries of the easement 


4.  Responsibility for construction and maintenance of an access route is based on use made of the 
easement (per Civil Code §845(c)).  Unless and until SSWD decides to make use of the easement, 
SSWD has no obligation or responsibility for construction or maintenance of the easement 


5.  If SSWD elects to use the easement and to secure access over the easement area, SSWD must 
provide Korbel with keys, access codes, etc. for access through any gates or other barriers 


6.  If SSWD elects to use the easement, SSWD is obligated to maintain the easement in a manner to 
minimize runoff, erosion and soil instability and that does not adversely affect vegetation, wildlife or the 
environment  


7.  Korbel makes no warranties or representations as to the suitability of the road for described 
purposes 


8.  SSWD is obligated to indemnify Korbel for SSWD’s acts or omissions for its use of the easement.  
SSWD is also obligated to defend, indemnify and hold Korbel harmless from mechanics’ liens or other 
liens related to work or improvements undertaken by, or on behalf of, SSWD  


9. If SSWD elects to use the easement, SSWD is obligated to maintain liability insurance with policy 
limits of at least $2,000,000 and must name Korbel as an additional insured on such policy 
 
  
 
1989468.1  
 







smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text

Exhibit 3



smack

Typewritten Text

































































































































































































































































		Item V-I - Korbel Access Easement

		Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 



		Item V-I.1 Resolution 12-20 Korbel Easement

		Item V-I.2 - Ex 2 Korbel Access Easement Summary

		Item V-I.3 Korbel easement w exhibits










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: November 1, 2012  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in September were 33,727 


units (77.4 AF, Guerneville cycle) and production was 76.0 AF.  Compared to 
one year ago, sales this September was higher and production lower (73.7 
AF and 76.7 AF, respectively).  The annual average difference between sales 
and production decreased compared to the prior month, 25.7% - and every 
prior month - this is the first time this difference has been below 26%.    
Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving averages since September 2006, data 
are available back to May 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  In September we had 12 total leaks and spent 52 man-hours on 


them.   Those are fewer leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month 
and compared to September one year ago (21 leaks, 85 man-hours).  Figure 
2 is continued showing service and main leaks separately with a total breaks 
line as well.  The annual average is staying below the 200 per year mark and 
the 12 month average of service leaks continues to be more than main leaks 
numbers.  I’ve added trendlines this month – these show main breaks are 
dropping and service breaks are flat for the data since September 2006.       


 
4. Russian River Flow at Hacienda:  Summer Russian River flow at Hacienda 


is shown in Figure 3.   Through the summer flow stayed near or above 100 
cfs and continued to look more like last year than that 2009 drought year 
even though yearly precipitation was closer to 2009 amounts. 


 
5. Guerneville Rainfall: Rainy season is on its way, so the cumulative annual 


Guerneville rainfall chart has been added.  At the time this report was written 
(October 25), October rainfall in Guerneville was approximately 1.27 inches 
which is below the long-term average.  The prognostications I have heard are 
predicting a drier than normal winter which is not good news for next 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 5 
November 1, 2012 


 


summer Russian River flows – reservoir storage and watershed conditions will 
be low and dry respectively because of the dry prior winter.      


 
6. 2013 CIP:  The Lovers Lane element of the 2013 CIP is nearly completed as 


of the date of this report – all that was needed was some cleanup and paving 
– these may be done by the meeting.  On the Canyon Seven Road element of 
the project, the upper section has been largely completed – customers have 
been switched over to the new system and the lower section should be 
switched over by the meeting date.  The contractor will then move over to 
the Monte Rio Terraces work – Starrett Hill Road and Middle Terrace.       


 
7. USDA Financing:  We have received official notice that the 2014 CIP is 


eligible for funding by USDA and have been invited to submit a formal 
application.  This is discussed more fully in Agenda Item A. 


 
8. Monte Rio Recreation and Park District (MRR&P) Wonderland Trail:  


Representatives from MRR&P have informed me that they would like to be on 
the December or January agenda to discuss the use of District land for the 
Wonderland Trail element of the overall project.   


 
9. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   The Direct Install program has 


been popular.  We believe the available funding has been exhausted – 12 
direct install projects have been completed, but there are apparently 38 more 
applications pending.   This appears to be more applicants than available 
funding.  We have inquiries into the Sonoma County Water Agency staff on 
this.                


 
10. In-House Construction Projects:  There was only one in-house 


projects reported for October requiring 7 man-hours.  This was a construction 
service upgrade on East Street in Monte Rio.    


 
11.  Gantt Chart:   November in the Gantt Chart shows 2013 CIP construction 


reaching completion.  It’s going slower than that; more like half completed.  
Also, the Gantt Chart shows we should be starting on design of the 2014 CIP 
and that is discussed in Agenda Item A.    The Gantt Chart shows that 
consideration of the annual CIP should start in November – of course, we’ve 
been talking about that all summer and fall and will continue the discussion.   


 
 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 5 
November 1, 2012 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2006 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-06 Mar-07 Sep-07 Mar-08 Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2006


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
06


Jan-
07


May-
07


Sep-
07


Jan-
08


May-
08


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks
Service Breaks
Total Leaks
Linear Trend (Main Breaks)
Linear Trend (Service Breaks)


 


 







General Manager’s Report  4 of 5 
November 1, 2012 


 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2012 Compared to Earlier Years 
and the 2000-2008 Average, Updated October 17, 2012


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


800


1-M
ay


8-M
ay


15
-M


ay


22
-M


ay


29
-M


ay
5-J


un


12
-Ju


n


19
-Ju


n


26
-Ju


n
3-J


ul


10
-Ju


l


17
-Ju


l


24
-Ju


l


31
-Ju


l


7-A
ug


14
-A


ug


21
-A


ug


28
-A


ug
4-S


ep


11
-S


ep


18
-S


ep


25
-S


ep
2-O


ct


Fl
ow


 (c
fs


)


2000-08 Avg


2009


2011


2012


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


2012


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


 


Figure 4.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


ber


Dec
em


ber


Ja
nu


ary


Febru
ary


Marc
h


Apri
l


May
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2011
2013


-Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)







Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 FY 14+
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2012-13 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


2013-14 Budget Preparation
•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2013 CIP Design


•        2013 CIP Award of Contract


•        2013 CIP Construction Starts


•        2014 CIP Design


•        2014 CIP Award of Contract


•        2014 CIP Construction Starts


2010 Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-16


Policies and Procedures
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and 
Objectives


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: November 1, 2012 



